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Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

The Trustees of The Hoddesdon School Trust (‘the Academy Trust’) present their annual
report together with the financial statements of the Academy Trust for the year to 31 Augusl
2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report and a directors’
report under company law.

On 16 July 2016 the members of The John Warner School agreed that the name of the
Company should be changed to The Hoddesdon School Trust. This followed the Company’s
successful transition to Multi-Academy Trust status and the agreement of two local primary
schools to join the Academy Trust on 1 September 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set
out on pages 70 to 75 of the attached financial statements and comply with the Academy
Trust's Memorandum and Articles of Association, applicable laws and Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102).

In line with the ESFA's Supplementary Bulletin on COVID-19 published in July 2020, the
Trustees have described the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Academy Trust in a
number of areas, throughout the report and in a specific section at the end of ‘achievements
and performance.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Hoddesdon School Trust is an exempt charity and a company limited by guarantee, not
having share capital. The Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary
governing document of the Academy Trust. The Trustees of The Hoddesdon School Trust
are also the directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law.

History

The Academy Trust runs three Academies: The John Warner School, The Cranbourne
Primary School and Roselands Primary School. All three are co-educational and are in
Hoddesdon, Hertfordshire. The John Warner School was a local authority operated school
founded in 1953 and converted to Academy Trust status on 1 April 2011. It then became
The Hoddesdon School Trust, a Multi-Academy Trust, on 1 September 2016 comprising of
The John Warner School and the two primary schools who became Academies themselves
on 1 September 2016.

The John Warner School was incorporated on 8 March 2011 and was governed by the rules
and regulations set down in its company Memorandum and Articles of Association dated 8
March 2011 and which were subsequently replaced by new Articles of Association on 27
July 2016 as part of the process of conversion to Multi-Academy Trust status.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 3



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Members’ liability
The members of the Academy Trust are Mr N R Chaaban, Mrs F L Ives, Mrs A M Pask and
Mr P Tidmarsh.

Every member of the Academy Trust undertakes to contribute an amount not exceeding £10
to the assets of the Academy Trust in the event of the Academy Trust being wound up
during the year of membership, or within one year thereafter.

Trustees’ indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased
insurance to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or
omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust business. From March 2015, the Academy
Trust was part of the Academies Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA). The cost of this
insurance is included within the total insurance cost.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to run three schools: The John Warner School,
The Cranbourne Primary School and Roselands Primary School. All three are co-
educational and are in Hoddesdon, Hertfordshire.

In accordance with its charitable objectives, the Academy Trust seeks to advance the
education of the children attending the Academies within it. The Academy Trust's primary

" beneficiaries are therefore the students and their parents. The principal means whereby this
activity is carried out is by maintaining a high standard of education for all within the
Academy Trust.

In addition, the Academy Trust operates the John Warner School Sports Centre for the
benefit of the Academy Trust's pupils and also other primary school pupils in the locality and
the wider community.

The Sports Centre is a joint venture with the Borough of Broxbourne governed by a dual-use
agreement. This agreement allows the Sports Centre to operate for the benefit of the local
community and for the Academy Trust. The Academy Trust provides the Sports Centre with
an appropriate amount of funding to support its maintenance and running. In return the
Borough of Broxbourne operates the Sports Centre and maintains it for the benefit of both
the pupils of the Academy Trust and the local community. It is not possible to quantify the
financial benefit of this arrangement but it is undoubtedly the case that both the Academy
Trust's population and the local community benefit from the dual-use facility.

- N ) ' The Hoddesdon School Trust 4
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Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Trustees

The Trustees are directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of the Companies Act
2006. The following Trustees were in office at 31 August 2021 and served throughout the
year.

Trustee

Mr D A Aliman (appointed on 1 September 2020)
Ms J E M Carson (Co-opted)

Mr G A Dykes

Mrs F L lves

Mr D J Kennedy (Chair)

Mr R J McCarthy BEM

Mrs R E Semark (Co-opted)

Mr A Shah-Cundy

Mrs M C Sykes

Mr M Bown was appointed on 4 October 2021.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Trustees regularly review the mix of skills that should be available to the Board. New
Trustees are then sought with these skills, either as additional Trustees or replacements
when existing Trustees stand down and it is anticipated that the great majority of new
Trustees will be drawn from the local community, being either parents or guardians of pupils
at the Academy Trust or others that have shown an interest in the future well-being of the
Academy Trust and its pupils. Recruitment is therefore through a combination of
approaches to individuals with known skills and by wider communications to those within the
Hoddesdon area of Hertfordshire.

In accordance with the Academy Trust's Articles of Association and Terms of Reference,
new Trustees are appointed to the Board by the existing Trustees until the date of the next
Annual General Meeting, at which time they are eligible for re-election for a period of four
years. At the end of a four year term, retiring Trustees are eligible for re-election for a further
term. Individual Trustees attend training courses and conferences organised by appropriate
bodies in order to ensure their knowledge and understanding is fully up to date. A series of
briefings for the Board and the senior management team of the Academy Trust as a whole
is in place based on areas of potential interest and/or concern.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

New Trustees are provided with an Induction Pack comprising all relevant documentation
relating to the recent work of the Trustees, together with the Trust's Articles of Association,
the current Trustee Handbook and all policies in operation at the Academy Trust. A regular
skills audit is undertaken which, with the current competency matrix, identifies future training
needs which are addressed through internal training or that are provided by nationally
accredited trainers.

AThe Hoddesdon School Trust 5



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Organisational structure

The Trustees have responsibility for setting and monitoring the overall strategic direction of
the Academy Trust, approving decisions reserved to Trustees and appointing key members
of staff.

The retained responsibilities of the Trust Board are set out in its Terms of Reference and its
Scheme of Delegation.

The Board of Trustees meets six times each year. All decisions reserved to the Trustees are
taken by the Board as a whole, in accordance with its Terms of Reference and its Scheme
of Delegation. Board sub-committees meet during the year to consider detailed matters and
recommend decisions to the full Board.

During the period for which this report accounts, the Trust Board, in addition to its Local
Governing Bodies, operated an Audit and Risk Assurance Committee, a Finance
Committee, a Personnel and Pay Committee and an Education Committee, each operating
under clearly articulated Terms of Reference. In particular, the Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee considers issues relating to the systems and processes of control and risk
management that operated throughout The Hoddesdon School Trust, and to make
recommendations to the Board.

One impact of Covid-19 was the decision to convene eight additional meetings of the Audit
and Risk Assurance Committee to oversee the Trust's response.

The Trust Board retained the decision not to convene additional regular committee meetings
in order to maximise Trustee first hand engagement with work of the Trust, however a
Sports Centre Committee and ad hoc groups of Trustees are established, as and when
required, to consider specific issues and make recommendations to the Board.

The day-to-day management of the Academy Trust rests with the Chief Executive Ofﬁcér
and Executive Headteacher, the Chief Financial Officer and the Headteachers of the
constituent Academies. This Senior Management Team has the overall responsibility for
operations, across the Trust.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the Trustees and the Senior Management Team
listed on page 1.

Pay and remuneration for key management staff are determined in accordance with the
Academy Trust's Pay Policy pursuant to the Trust’'s Terms of Reference and its Schedule of
Delegation. The Trustees monitor the outcomes of pay decisions, ensuring the schools’
continued compliance with equalities legislation.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 6



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Trade union facility time
The Academy Trust had no relevant trade union officials in the year.

Connected organisations, including related party relationships

The Academy Trust has a relationship with the Borough of Broxbourne which involves a
dual-use agreement whereby the Borough operate the Academy Trust's Sports Centre. This
agreement has a 21 year timespan and was signed on 13 February 2002. There is a
Trustee and councillor oversight group that meets twice a year.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Hoddesdon School Trust is committed to providing employees with information on
matters of concern to them, consulting with employees or their representatives regularly so
that the views of employees can be considered in making decisions which are likely to affect
their interests, and encouraging the involvement of employees in the Trust's performance
working toward achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the factors
affecting the performance of the Trust.

To do this, the Trust's Senior Leadership Team, composed of the Chief Executive Officer,
the Chief Financial Officer and the Headteachers of the three constituent academies, meet
on a weekly basis to discuss strategic and operational matters that affect the Trust as a
whole, and to give due consideration and to develop a shared approach across the Trust to
issues emerging in any one of those academies. Trust leaders routinely collaborate with and
provide mutual support for one another, and model this process so that it can be copied by
the senior leadership teams in the schools themselves. The culture in all of the schools is
one of consultation with staff so that sustainable improvement processes can become
embedded.

The Trust welcomes applications for employment from disabled persons, and works with
occupational health professionals to support the treatment of employees who become
disabled. Appropriate training, career development and promotion is available to all staff,
including disabled persons, throughout their employment with us.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the
Trust

The Hoddesdon School Trust is enjoined to spend public money well. Its priorities in
engagement with suppliers and others with whom the Trust has a business relationship are
to ensure that purchasing and procurement processes are economic, efficient, effective and
equitable: Relationships with suppliers are documented appropriately and reviewed for best
value as a matter of routine. The Trust complies fully with the Department for Education’s
guidance on buying procedures and procurement law for schools.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 7



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

Objects
The charitable objects of the Academy Trust are set down in the governing document as
follows:

i)

ii)

To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing a school offering a broad and balanced
curriculum (“the Academy”); and

To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Hoddesdon and the surrounding area
the provision of facilities, for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals
who have a need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or
disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances, or for the public
at large in the interests of social welfare, and with the object of improving the condition
of life of the said inhabitants.

Aims
The Trust's aims are, therefore:

i)

To ensure that the education provided by the Academy Trust within all of its Academies
is of the highest possible quality; and

To ensure that the facilities for recreation leisure timeA activities that it promotes is as
effective as it can be in improving the condition of life of the members of the community
it serves.

Objectives, strategies and activities

Objectives
The Trust's objectives, to achieve its aims, are:

1.

To ensure that governance, leadership and management, safeguarding and wellbeing
across the Trust are of the highest quality;

To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is maintained
well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure compliance
with all relevant statutory requirements; and

To ensure that the curriculum of all its Academies provides to all their pupils is best
placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities, responsibilities and
experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the knowledge and cuitural
capital to do so.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 8



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities (continued)

Strategies
The Trust's strategies to fulfil those objectives are:

1.

To continue to sustainably improve its governance, leadership and management, its
safeguarding of the children and young people in its care, and the wellbeing of its staff.

2.  To manage the resources at its disposal with a view to securing the best possible value
for money in pursuit of its aims.

3. To support the individual Academies in relation to their distinctive features and
enrichment activities so as to enhance the cuitural capital of the children and young
people in their care.

Activities

The Trust's activities in relation to those strategies are:

1.

To continue to sustainably improve its governance, leadership and management, its
safeguarding of the children and young people in its care, and the wellbeing of its staff.

To ensure that the Trust's maintenance and development activities and its compliance
requirements are fulfilled effectively in relation to (1) finance, administration, IT, GDPR,
health and safety and the estate; (2) people, their recruitment, retention, rights and
responsibilities and (3) other resources, and integrated curriculum and financial
planning.

To secure economic, efficient, effective and equitable curriculum design within and
across phases so that the distinctive features of each Academy and its enrichment
activities contribute to enhance the cultural capital of the children and young people in
their care. It is about focussing on approaches to pedagogy and wider educational
practice through the continuing professional development of teachers so that
educational outcomes of children are the best they can be, and is related directly to the
vision, mission and shared values of the Trust as a whole, and the unique, distinctive
ethos of the constituent Academies.

Public benefit

The Trustees have taken The Charity Commission’s specific guidance on public benefit
(contained within the guidance document “The Advancement of Education for the Public
Benefit’) into consideration in preparing their statements on public benefit contained within
this Trustees’ Annual Report.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 9



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Benefits and beneficiaries

In accordance with its charitable objectives, the Academy Trust strives to advance the
education of the attending pupils. The Academy Trust's primary beneficiaries are therefore
the pupils, and benefits to pupils are provided through continuing to maintain a high
standard of education throughout the Academy Trust.

Trustees’ assessment of public benefit

In order to determine whether or not the Academy Trust has fulfilled its charitable objectives
for public benefit, the Trustees scrutinise external performance data published nationally by
the Department for Education, internal data presented to them through the work of the Local
Governing Bodies of the constituent Academies and the Head Teachers thereof, all of whom
are accountable directly to the CEO and Executive Headteacher of the Academy Trust.
Evidence of this may be seen in the minutes and associated papers for each of the Local
Governing Body meetings, and in those of the Trust itself.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and performance

Introduction ,

This is the fifth annual report of The Hoddesdon School Trust as a Multi-Academy Trust
which commenced operationally on 1 September 2016 and represents the joining together
of three schools who have a long and distinguished history of working together. These are
The John Warner School, The Cranbourne Primary School and Roselands Primary School.

All three schools are co-educational, comprehensive schools that are located in north
Hoddesdon, Hertfordshire.

The maijority of children leaving The Cranbourne Primary School and Roselands Primary
School subsequently join The John Warner School for their secondary education, though
this is not an automatic right and the admissions processes for all three schools are
published clearly on their respective websites.

Review of activities

The activities of the Trust have been undertaken in accordance with the strategy set out to
achieve the Trust's objectives. These are listed below, with summaries of progress in terms
of indicators, milestones and benchmarks thereafter.

Objective 1: To ensure that governance, leadership and management, safeguarding
and wellbeing across the Trust are of the highest quality

Trustees’ priorities are:

1. To provide strategic leadership that sets and champions vision, ethos and strategy

The Hoddesdon School Trust 10



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Review of activities (continued)

Objective 1: To ensure that governance, leadership and management, safeguarding
and wellbeing across the Trust are of the highest quality (continued)

2. To ensure the Board is composed of people with the right skills, experience, qualities
and capacity to do so

3. To ensure that the Trust is organised through structures that reinforce clearly defined
roles and responsibilities and that secure compliance with statutory and contractual
requirements

4. To ensure that accountability arrangements drive up educational standards and
financial performance

5. To monitor, evaluate and improve the quality and impact of governance

6. To ensure that leadership and management operations align with and deliver on the
vision, ethos and strategy set by the Board of Trustees

7. To ensure that safeguarding is at the heart of all operational activity
8. To ensure that, through holding the wellbeing of staff at the heart of its activities, their

engagement brings about the achievement of the Trust's objectives

Objective 2 : To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements.

Trustees’ governance priorities focus specifically on the following aspects:

1. Finance, administration, IT, GDPR, health and safety and the estate

2. People, their recruitment, retention, rights and responsibilities

3. Other resources, and integrated curriculum and financial planning

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all their Academies provide to all their
pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,

responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. ’

Trustees’ priorities are to ensure that its Academies focus on, and are held accountable for,
the following aspects of educational practice:

1. Curriculum design within and across phases
The Hoddesdon School Trust 11



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Review of activities (continued)

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all their Academies provide to all their
pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. (continued)

2. Distinctive features, enrichment and cultural capital
3. Approaches to pedagogy and wider educational practice
4. Continuing professional development of teachers

5. Educational outcomes and standards

Indicators, milestones and benchmarks

Objective 1: To ensure that governance, leadership and management, safeguarding
and wellbeing across the Trust are of the highest quality ‘

1.1: To provide strategic leadership that sets and champions vision, mission, ethos,
shared values and strategy

Trustees champion the Trust's vision of creating memories and futures together.

Their mission is to build a strong and secure platform for the lifelong learning of all the
Trust's children, staff and the community it serves by offering a broad, balanced and well-
rounded education for all, in the belief that through shared values and high aspirations its
Academies are stronger together. Trustees are committed to helping children and young
people to discover, grow and develop their own potential for success today, and throughout
their lives.

The ethos of The Hoddesdon School Trust and the values shared across it are aspiration,
creativity, participation, respect, and endeavour. These mean that all stakeholders:

¢ aim high in all that they do, prepare to succeed in school and in life, and aim to create
memories and futures together;

¢ believe that they are all creative, that they love learning and thinking deeply and they
acknowledge the importance of education for education's sake;

¢ learn from each other to make. a positive impact on our school, families and world,
broaden their skills beyond the classroom and promote community links through charity
work;

The Hoddesdon School Trust 12



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.1: To provide strategic leadership that sets and champions vision, mission, ethos,
shared values and strategy (continued)

¢ create a mutually respectful atmosphere, embrace diversity, have respect for
themselves and form positive relationships in an environment that is free from
prejudice, bullying and harassment;

¢ Dbelieve that hard work leads to success, believe in the importance of service to achieve
targets, goals and ambitions, and believe in the need to develop resilience to thrive in
an ever-changing world.

The overarching framework and operational objectives for fulfilling the Trust's mission and
achieving its vision through these values and shared ethos are set out in the Trust's
Strategic Plan, and progress to date together with current and future priorities are set out in
its Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

The Board exercised decisive strategic leadership throughout the year and in particular at
key points related to the various phases of Covid-19 response, at all times retaining focus
on the Trust's vision, mission, ethos, shared values and strategy.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022 are:

1. To work through the emerging issues around Covid-19 and the new normalities as they
evolve so that the educational outcomes for the Trust's children and young people are
of as high quality as they can be.

1.2: To ensure the Board is composed of people with the right skills, experience,
qualities and capacity to do so

In line with the Academies Handbook, Trustees undertake an annual assessment of the
Trust Board's skills and experience and review of the Board's composition in terms of skills,
effectiveness, leadership and impact.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

A comprehensive annual assessment of the Trust Board's skills and experience and review
of the Board’s composition in terms of skills, effectiveness, leadership and impact was
undertaken throughout the year, informed by all participants completing a questionnaire
drawn directly from the Department For Education’s Governor Competency Framework.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 13



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.2: To ensure the Board is composed of people with the right skills, experience,
qualities and capacity to do so (continued)

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021 (continued)

This identified areas to prioritise for governance training, and arrangements were put in
place to ensure that this training is both of high quality and readily accessible to Trustees
and members of Local Governing Bodies.

The process was strengthened by the review of Trustee contributions undertaken by the
Chair of the Board of Trustees using the National Governors Association's resource
‘Reviewing your governors’ or trustees’ contribution’.

Another priority was to develop and operate effective arrangements for recruiting, inducting
and training members of the Trust Board and its Committees.

This was effective at both levels of governance.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To further reduce the administrative burden associated with membership of the Trust
Board and its Committees in terms of annual assessment by using the revised National
Governors Association’s new resource ‘Skills audit and skills dashBoard’, and to
broaden qualitative review by having the Chairs of the Trust's Local Governing Body
using the National Governors Association’'s resource ‘Reviewing your governors' or
trustees’ contribution’ with each of the members of their respective Local Governing
Bodies.

2. To continue to improve the arrangements for recruiting, inducting and training of
members of the Trust Board and its Committees. This will be through the routinisation
of recruitment activity, improvement in induction arrangements, and proactive
management of the training programme for Trustees and members of Local Governing
Bodies.

1.3: To ensure that the Trust is organised through structures that reinforce clearly
defined roles and responsibilities and that secure compliance with statutory and
contractual requirements

The Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation are subject to annual review, as are its
Policies.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 14
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.3: To ensure that the Trust is organised through structures that reinforce clearly
defined roles and responsibilities and that secure compliance with statutory and
contractual requirements (continued)

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

Throughout the year the Trust's Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation were
reviewed as were its policies, with decisions about amendment documented accordingly.
These include:

1. Change of name of Committee - Education Committee renamed Education and
Standards Committee

2. Updated Terms of Reference - Education and Standards Committee includes wider
defined remit

The foci for Internal Assurance, determined by the Board of Trustees and overseen in the
first instance by the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee, were:

a) Risk management
b) Management information and the quality of the Board pack
c) Business continuity and disaster recovery

These foci precipitated considerable effort to review, revise and build from first principles a
coherent framework for risk management. The quality of management information and the
Board pack was already high and some refinements including the reduction of
documentation provided to the Board were welcomed. Business continuity and disaster
recovery were, under Covid-19, something of a routine concern, however the work
undertaken to respond to the demands for articulation strengthened the Trust's architecture
for a more diverse set of potential issues.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priority is:
1.  To continue to review and update documentation to reflect the will of the Trust Board

2. To operate the framework for risk management so that the principal risks to which the
Trust is exposed are addressed in its Strategic Plan and outcomes related to them are
reflected in the subsequent Annual Report and Financial Statements.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 15



Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.4: To ensure that accountability arrangements drive up educational standards and
financial performance :
The Committees of the Trust Board, including the Local Governing Bodies, operate
effectively and efficiently, and the Trust's policies in relation to pay, appraisal and capability
as well as internal managerial arrangements are focused on driving up educational
standards and financial performance.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

The Trust determined, in the period to 31 August 2021, that the Education Committee
convened to exercise strategic oversighi of the quality of education provided by the Trust as
a whole should have its remit extended and its name revised so that ‘Education’ became
‘Education and Standards’.

The Terms of Reference of the Committee were augmented so that its remit encompasses
but is not limited to the following areas: Quality of Education, School Development Plan
Priorities and SEFs, Pupil Numbers and Attendance, Ofsted, Peer Review, Safeguarding
and Behaviour, Policies, Academic and Non-Academic achievements, SEND, Pupil &
Sports Premium and Catch-Up Funding.

In relation to financial performance, Integrated Curriculum and Financial Management which
are now a ‘must’ in the Academies Trust Handbook 2021 was already a strong focus for the
Trust, and became all the more so.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To ensure that the sources of assurance the Board can draw on in terms of the quality
of education and the educational standards attained by the children and young people
of the Trust are appropriate, accessible, credible and provided in a timely manner so
that action can be taken, where necessary, in a timely fashion.

2. To ensure that decisions about Integrated Curriculum and Financial Management are

robust, well documented and sustainable.

1.5: To rhonitor, evaluate and improve the quality and impact of governance
Trustees review and evaluate their collective capacity for effective, impactful governance
through consideration of:

¢ Leadership and people, values, ethos, planning, monitorihg and reviewingl listening,
leading, managing risk and making decisions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.5: To monitor, evaluate and improve the quality and impact of governance
(continued)

¢ Structures and compliance with regard to oversight, separation, communication, terms
of reference and schemes of delegation, complementarity and avoidance of duplication,
awareness, adherence and the effective undertaking of duties and responsibilities.

¢ Accountability and improvement, in relation to analysis, oversight, monitoring and
challenge, transparency, performance management and processes for business and
financial planning, effective controls for managing within available resources and
ensuring regularity, propriety and value for money, independent checking, skills audit,
planned recruitment, induction and CPD, self-evaluation and review of contribution,
external review and independent assessment, documentation compliant with legal
requirements for retention.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

The Trust's arrangements for the monitoring, evaluation and improvement of the quality and
impact of governance through rigorous self-evaluation, capacity building, focusing on the
accessibility of relevant resources, the management of risk and the operation of an active
reserves policy in pursuit of its strategic aims have been documented in other sections of
this report. Anything more would be repetition.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022

For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To ensure self-evaluation informs planning, monitoring and evaluation of improvement
2. To operate an active Risk Register that informs the Strategic Plan

3. To actively manage the Trust's reserves in pursuit of the Trust's strategic aims.

1.6 To ensure that leadership and management operations align with and deliver on

the vision, ethos and strategy set by the Board of Trustees
This is a new objective, set in October 2021.

" Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
Not, therefore, explicitly applicable in this report, however one that has always been
operational. It had not been articulated as such.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

1.6 To ensure that leadership and management operations align with and deliver on
the vision, ethos and strategy set by the Board of Trustees (continued)

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To work through how governance, leadership and management might be
operationalised in pursuit of the Trust's vision, mission, ethos, shared values and
strategy.

1.7 To ensure that safeguarding is at the heart of all operational activity
This is a new objective, set in October 2021.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
Not, therefore, explicitly applicable in this report, however one that has always been
operational. It had not been articulated as such.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To undertake a strategic review of safeguarding, informed by the Confederation of
School Trusts’ masterclass of the same name, and to act accordingly.

1.8 To ensure that, through holding the wellbeing of staff at the heart of its activities,
their engagement brings about the achievement of the Trust’s objectives
This is a new objective, set in October 2021.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
Not, therefore, explicitly applicable in this report, however one thal has always been
operational. It had not been articulated as such.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To devise, operate and review a strategic approach to the wellbeing of Trust staff,
informed by the Chartered Institute of Professional Development's factsheet ‘Wellbeing
at work’ issued on 27 April 2021, and in compliance as a signatory to the Department of
Education’s ‘Education Wellbeing Staff Education Charter published/ updated on 17
November 2021.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 2: To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements

2.1: Finance, administration, IT, GDPR, health and safety and the estate

This objective is about how well ‘the machine’ functions, and making it function more
effectively. It is the aim of any organisation, and is the linchpin of success. The Annual
Report and Financial Statements to 31 August 2021 set out where we were and the text
below is an update and is an accurate representation of the state of affairs.

Finance

The Trust's Central Services Team fulfils all financial operations beyond local financial
administration. The quality of management information provided to the Board was
incrementally improved over the period to 31 August 2021 and includes a dashboard with
infographics, time series and benchmarking drawing on a range of different sources of
information. Systems are robust, resilient and integrated with one another, securing further
efficiencies.

Administration

Each Academy operates its own administrative functions, with the Trust's Central Services
Team providing support where required in relation, principally, to finance and human
resource matters. Across the Trust all schools moved away from SIMS and their sets of
separate standalone services to Bromcom as its management information system. This
provides a more integrated service at a reduced cost and enables Trust-wide consistencies
of practice to be developed, again securing further efficiencies.

IT
IT is managed locally by The John Warner School and outsourced to a partner organisation
by The Cranbourne Primary School and Roselands Primary School. It is an area in which
the Trust is proactive in driving down costs whilst improving provision and will continue to do
SO.

GDPR
The Trust employs its own Data Protection Officer who oversees compliance with the Data
Principles in accordance with the arrangements set out in its Privacy Policy.
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- STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 2: To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements (continued)

2.1: Finance, administration, IT, GDPR, health and safety and the estate (continued)

Health and safety

The Trust has a Health and Safety Officer who oversees Health and Safety related matters
across the Trust in accordance with its Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation. The
Trust Site Team meet regularly to review progress and share best practice in terms of
planned preventative maintenance and other aspects of Health and Safety across the three

‘sites.

The estate

The Trust's Estate Management Plan sets out its arrangements for managing the estate. At
the John Warner School in particular some spaces were repurposed during the academic
year to 31 August 2021 to in reflection of changes to curriculum shape so that space usage
is optimised for the arts and professional studies.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
Priorities in the year to 31 August 2021 were:

1. To ensure that economy, efficiency, effectiveness and equity underpin decisions about
school resource management

2. To ensure that the systems and staffing in relation to finance and administration
facilitate routines, robustness, resilience and innovation

3. To ensure that the systems, staffing and infrastructure in relation to ICT and GDPR
facilitate routines, robustness, resilience and innovation

4. To ensure that the systems and staffing in relation to health and safety facilitate
routines, robustness, resilience and innovation

5. To maintain and develop the estate in a sustainable, compliant and economic manner

In this period the ‘machine’ was significantly stress tested and proven to be resilient.
Opportunities were seized to make improvements to physical and technological
infrastructure and these benefits will continue to be appreciated in the coming years.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 2: To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements (continued)

2.1: Finance, administration, IT, GDPR, health and safety and the estate (continued)

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
Priorities in the year to 31 August 2022 are:

1. To focus internal scrutiny on human resources and the estate, including health and
safety.

2. To refine working practices further.

3. To prepare and submit Condition Improvement Fund bids for repair/ replacement of the
flat roofs and energy inefficient single glazed windows on the original parts of The John
Warner School’s buildings.

2.2: People, their recruitment, retention, rights and responsibilities

The Trust is located in the London Fringe area. This means that teaching staff can attract
salaries that are around 8% more than those paid by the London Fringe scale by working 8
miles south, in Quter London.

This is a challenge in terms of recruitment and retention, as is the cost of housing,
particularly for teaching staff.

A benefit of Multi-Academy Trust status is that, from time to time, staff can be retained and
promoted within the organisation and can move between Academies, thereby retaining their
talent.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021

For the year to 31 August 2021 the priorities were:

1. To have the right people in the right places performing in the right ways
2. To ensure that staffing is fit for purpose by defining that purpose

3. To improve connectivity between schools and Trust Central Services to enhance
efficiency : .

A staffing review, changes to line management structure and revised and updated job
descriptions for support staff at The John Warner School brought about greater alignment of
people and their practice.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievemehts and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 2: To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements (continued)

2.2: People, their recruitment, retention, rights and responsibilities (continued)

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021 (continued)
Recruitment processes were refined, and professional advice on staffing matters was
routinely secured in relating to the changing nature of working life under Covid-19.

The move to a new integrated management information system, Bromcom, required
considerable time and attention from a core group of staff.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To adapt working practices to fit the constraints and take advantage of the
opportunities offered by the new integrated management information system.

2. To look to reduce recruitment costs where possible

3. To develop a talent management strategy centred on employee engagement and
wellbeing.

2.3: Other resources, and integrated curriculum and financial planning

‘Other resources’' relates primarily but not exclusively to resources linked directly to
teaching, their acquisition and allocation. In the primary schools this is on a class by class
basis, and in the secondary school is directly related to curriculum share which means the
proportion of pupil periods each curriculum area occupies in relation to the curriculum as a
whole, plus any other non-timetables curriculum activities. The mechanism is transparent
and the quantum for the total of these resources has increased significantly since the Trust's
formation in 2016.

Integrated curriculum and financial planning sits in two camps, by its very nature.

Organisationally the imperative is to ensure that economy, efficiency, effectiveness and
equity underpin decisions about school resource management.

Educationally there is an ongoing balance to be struck between available resource, for the
most part teaching staff, determining curriculum offer, and the opposite, school leaders
deciding what the desired curriculum is and then ensuring that what is eventually offered is
affordable.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 2: To ensure that the organisational aspects of the Trust are such that it is
maintained well, developed constructively, and managed in such a way as to ensure
compliance with all relevant statutory requirements (continued)

2.3: Other resources, and integrated curriculum and financial planning (continued)
One of the advantages of being part of a Multi-Academy Trust is that staff can be shared
across sites so that where any individual school might not wish or be able to afford a whole
member of staff for a particular role, Trust wide working makes that recruitment cost
effective when shared across all three. '

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priority was:

1. To have the desired curriculum, costed and affordable and to determine the resource
allocation

A fundamental change of curriculum shape at The John Warner School was planned for and
implemented on 1 September 2020. This will be reviewed and refined in an iterative manner
'year on year to secure value for money, primarily in relation to staffing, so that it the
curriculum is economic, efficient, effective and equitable.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022 are:

1. To review the affordability of the current curriculum in the light of any changes to the
number of pupils on roll when recruited to year 7 or the sixth form at The John Warner
School, and make appropriate changes where necessary.

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all of the Academies provide to all of
their pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so.

3.1: Curriculum design within and across phases

Each school has its own distinct curriculum. Staff across the Trust work together on shared
projects and priorities to support and learn from one another with a view to enhancing
quality and reducing unnecessary duplication of effort where possible.

As The John Warner School is the destination for the vast majority of the pupils at
Roselands Primary School and The Cranbourne Primary School, an ongoing priority is to
develop a coherent, integrated curriculum across years 5-8.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all of the Academies provide to all of
their pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. (continued)

3.1: Curriculum design within and across phases (continued)

The Trust’s physical location and the emphasis it places on collaborative working is such
that the intention is to share this curriculum with other local primary schools to further
enhance primary-secondary transition.

For those schools in the Trust, an added benefit is that any spare resources in terms of
teaching time arising out of the secondary school timetable can be used to provide specialist
teaching in the primary schools, some of which can also offset the costs associated with
planning, preparation and assessment time in the primary schools, thereby achieving
enhanced value for money across the Trust as a whole.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priority was:

1. To ensure that curriculum design within and across phases of the Trust's operations is
economic, efficient, effective and equitable.

Work this year on initiatives to integrate the years 5-8 were focused on history and
geography, building on earlier work in English, mathematics, science, modern foreign
languages, music and physical education.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priorities are:

1. To make effective use of the curriculum mapping exercises in English, mathematics
and science already undertaken.

2. To focus on the development of transferable skills in line with the Trust's value
‘endeavour’, specifically being organised, managing time, reading effectively, writing
effectively, thinking critically and being determined.

3. To continue to involve schools outside of the Trust in curriculum development work.

The Hoddesdon School Trust 24



L%

Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all of the Academies provide to all of
their pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. (continued)

3.2: Distinctive features, enrichment and cultural capital

Each Academy is valued for its own unique and distinctive features. These are diverse,
often shared, and provide enrichment opportunities in an individual Academy and across the
Trust. All are intended to help develop children and young people’s cultural capital and
some, including German, robotics and the Model United Nations span the primary and
secondary sectors.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priorities were:

1. To ensure that the unique, distinctive ethos and features of the Academies within the
Trust are maintained and that the Trust's shared vision and values are likewise
sustained.

2. To ensure that enrichment activities across the Trust continue to enhance the cultural
capital of the children and young people in its care.

One of the biggest impacts of Covid-19 in terms of school operation was the requirement for
social distancing and the maintenance of ‘bubbles’ to reduce mixing. This meant that that
the enrichment activities valued by children and staff alike were either severely modified or
completely curtailed.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priority is:

1. To rebuild and expand the programme of enrichment activities across the Trust in order
to enhance the cultural capital of the children and young people in its care.

3.3: Approaches to pedagogy and wider educational practice

Approaches to pedagogy across the Trust are informed by a combination of ‘common
approaches’ in terms of classroom management, Barak Rosenshine’s ‘Principles of
Instruction’, and subject specific approaches related to each aspect of curriculum. The Trust
is committed to evidence informed policy and practice, and is proactive in engaging with the
Chartered College of Teaching, and research at local; national-and international levels.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all of the Academies provide to all of
their pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. (continued)

3.3: Approaches to pedagogy and wider educational practice (continued)

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priority was:

1. To ensure that pedagogic practice is fit for purpose, reviewed regularly, and updated in
response to emerging need

Responding to the imperatives associated with the Covid-19 pandemic have meant that
teachers have had to make substantial changes to their professional practice, however at
their heart the set of common approaches, principles of instruction and subject or age
specific approaches related to particular aspects of curriculum remained in place.

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priority is:

1. Toreturnto pre;Covid-19 activities and practices.

3.4: Continuing professi'onal development of teachers

The Trust is committed to the continuing professional development of teachers and has
developed its own in-house programme of continuing professional development for
teachers, from those new to teaching to those aspiring to headship. In addition each
Academy is proactive in sourcing support and partnership with organisations and
programmes including those of Herts for Learning, Achieve Excellence and The Prince’s
Teaching Institute.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priority was:

1. To ensure that appropriate continuing professional development of teaching staff is
undertaken

In common with the rest of the world, the continuing professional development of teaching
staff was online, with all its advantages and disadvantages.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Indicators, milestones and benchmarks (continued)

Objective 3: To ensure that the curricula that all of the Academies provide to all of
their pupils are best placed to enable them to take advantage of the opportunities,
responsibilities and experiences of later life and that they are equipped with the
knowledge and cultural capital to do so. (continued)

3.4: Continuing professional development of teachers (continued)

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priority is:

1. To ensure that the approach to the continuing professional development of teaching
staff is appropriate to the circumstances in relation to Covid-19, and effective.

3.5: Educational outcomes and standards
‘Outcomes’ are about consequences, and so educational outcomes are the consequences,
i.e. the results or effects of the education the Trust provides.

A reasonable definition, therefore, is that educational outcomes are qualitative measures of
the extent to which stakeholders are satisfied with the quality of educational programs
provided by the Trust, the transformative experiences that association with the Trust have
facilitated and any notable or distinctive experiences, the readiness of children and people
to embark on the next steps in their education and/ or career, and their subsequent success
therein.

The definition is relatively easy, but metrics are exceptionally hard to define and then
measure beyond what would otherwise be defined as an ‘output’, typically a ranking or
grading, neither of which can capture nor communicate the significance without diving
deeper into underlying assumptions which are often contentious.

‘Standards’ is not just about examination resuits, but does relate to them.
This is the remit of the Trust's Education and Standards Committee.

Progress in the year to 31 August 2021
For the year to 31 August 2021 the priority was:

1.  To ensure that the education provided by the Trust encourages and enables children
and young people to take advantage of all available opportunities, responsibilities and
_experiences both in school and in their later lives.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

The quality of educational programmes provided by the Trust

There were no Ofsted inspections across the Trust upon which to report. Educational
programmes were severely disrupted by the multiple impacts of Covid-19 on educational
continuity.

in 2021, the use of teacher assessed grades (TAGs) saw a second year of significant
national grade inflation at GCSE and A Level:

¢ The percentage of A*-B grades at A Level was 51.1% in 2019, 65.4% in 2020 and
69.8% in 2021 (JWS 30.1% in 2019, 49.2% in 2020, 49.2% in 2021)

¢ The percentage of A*-A grades at A Level was 25.2% in 2019, 38.1% in 2020 and
44 .3% in 2021 (JWS 14.8% in 2019, 20.1% in 2020, 28.9% in 2021)

¢ The percentage of grade 7 or above at GCSE was 20.7% in 2019, 25.9% in 2020 and
28.5% in 2021 (JWS 15.9% in 2019, 19.8% in 2020, 20.6% in 2021)

¢ The percentage of grade 4 or above at GCSE was 67.1% in 2019, 75.9% in 2020 and
76.9% in 2021 (JWS 60.4% in 2019, 76% in 2020, 75% in 2021)

The John Warner School complied with the guidance set out by the Joint Council for
Qualifications (JCQ) to determine grades through teacher assessment, moderation and
internal standardisation.
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Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Performance Indicators Year 11

Trustees’ report (including the strategic report) Year to 31 August 2021

e
Progress 8 -0.14 | -0.05 | NA NA -0.03
Attainment 8 454 | 46 47 48 46.5 | 51
%EngMa 5+ 43 464 | 495 |46.3 .43.3 54
% Ebacc entry 83 785 |66.8 |[61.5 384
Ebacc APS 416 | 421 |436 |427 |4.04 |46
%Ebacc 5+ 16.9 | 124 |221 |174 | 16.7
%Ebacc 4+ 306 |306 |[327 [271 |241
Ebacc Sci VA -0.46 |-0.17 [-0.19 | -0.03
Ebacc Hums VA | -0.42 | -0.19 | -0.16 | -0.33
Ebacc Lang VA | -0.72 | -0.63 | -0.39 | -0.73
P8 Eng -0.1 0.2 -0.1 0.2
P8 Ma 0 0 0 0
P8 Ebacc -0.2 0 -0.1 -0.1
P8 open -0.3 -0.3 -0.6 -0.2
A8 Eng 4.9 5.2 5.1 5.3
A8 Ma 45 4.5 4.8 4.7
A8 Ebacc 4.2 4.4 4.6 4.5
A8 open 4.5 4.5 44 4.6
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Performance Indicators Year 11 (continued)
Key points:

*

KPls show relative stability at JWS compared to the national inflation over the last two
years

EBacc entry has fallen from a high of 83% in 2018 to 67% in 2021 due to changes in
curriculum design

An increase in gaps between disadvantaged (Pupil Premium) and non-disadvantaged —
this is the impact of COVID

Gaps between boys’ and girls’ performance in 2021 similar to 2019

Gaps between SEND and non-SEND pupils narrowed

Key Performance Indicators Year 13

A Level

Meas'ure 2018 | 2019 [ 2020 | 2021 | Nat (2019) | Nat (2021)
VA score -0.63 ;0.33 (0.52) [(0.33) |0

APS/Entry 27.21 28.02 34.26 | 32.46 | 33.33

Av grade/entry | C- C- C+ C+ C+

APS/student 71.54 | 84.74 | 107.09 | 110.2

APS/3 best 2512 | 28.19 | 34.38 | 35.7 [ 33.59

Av grade/3 best | C- C- C+ B- C+

% A*-A 176 | 14.8 | 20.1 289 | 255 44.3
% A*-B 326 |[30.1 [49.2 49.2 | 516 69.8
% A*-C 55.3 | 56.5 | 774 728 |75.8

% A*-D ° 722 | 79.7 |93.2 89.8 | 91

% A*-E 90.1 |95 98.4 984 | 97.6
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Performance Indicators Year 13 (continued)

Applied General

Measure 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | Nat (2019)
VA score -0.26 | 0.18 [(-0.2) ;(0.42) | O
APS/Entry 26.12 | 26.07 | 25.67 | 30.25 | 28.47

Av grade/entry | M M M D- M+

Key points:

¢ Some KPIs increased in-line with national inflation (e.g. A*-B) while others were more
modest (e.g. A*-A)

¢ Increase in KPIs was justified internally by significant changes to sixth form provision
¢ The gap between male and female attainment narrowed

¢ Higher proportion of students placed in first choice university (47/66 - 71%)

+ Lower proportion of students placed in insurance choice university (1/66 — 1.5%)

The transformative experiences that association with the Trust has facilitated and any
notable or distinctive experiences

The Trust's vision is to be an institution that creates, with others, long lasting, positive and
life changing experiences for all stakeholders so that their memories of association with the
Trust are ones they would want others to want to feel part of. Children and young people are
at the heart of this aspiration, and this extends to their parents and carers, the Trust's
teaching and support staff, its Trustees and the members of its Local Governing Bodies, and
the wider community it serves. Specific examples will be provided in this section of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements to 31 August 2022.

The readiness of children and people to embark on the next steps in their education and/ or
career, and their subsequent success therein.

The Trust's vision is also to be an institution that creates futures together, with the same
wide set of stakeholders in mind.

Careers education and guidance is a high priority at each stage of children and young
people’s education, as is working with local, regional and national employers to ensure that
the educational offer and experiences align with current and future employer needs.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Performance Indicators Year 13 (continued)

Areas of priority identified in partnership with Hertfordshire’s Chamber of Commerce include
but are not limited to advanced engineering and manufacture, information technology and
artificial intelligence, life sciences, work in the creative sector, property and construction,
professional services and health and social care. ’

Priorities for the year to 31 August 2022
For the year to 31 August 2022 the priority is:

1. To ensure that the education provided by the Trust encourages and enables children
and young people to take advantage of all available opportunities, responsibilities and
experiences both in school and in their later lives.

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the financial statements as a result of the

changing activities of the charity itself.

This section is an update from the previous year in relation to the impact of Covid-19 on the

activities of the Trust. The headings are those from the Supplementary Bulletin on COVID-
19 published in July 2020.

How the virus control measures affected the Trust’s activities
Progress toward the strategic and operational objectives set out in the Trust's Strategic Plan
have been described earlier in this section of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

The virus control measures put in place across the Trust's three sites have necessarily
impacted on the ways in which the Trust operates, and this has affected staff, children and
young people alike.

In the period from 23 March 2020 staff and students all had to adapt rapidly to remote
working, and this presented challenges for everyone. However, some of the arrangements
that were put in place and which would not necessarily have been considered were it not for
the pandemic may well continue to be adopted when restrictions eventually relax.

Teaching and support staff adapted to new ways of working and the prioritisation of
‘bubbles’ means that within these bubbles the curriculum continues to be taught as planned.

At The John Warner School the most significant change was the repurposing of the various
teaching blocks so that each block houses a particular year group and each year group
remains in that particular block for all of their lessons. This is a change from the previous
arrangements where each year group would house a particular faculty or subject area. A
positive consequence is less transit time for children between lessons, however, a challenge
associated with this for the staff is the need to move between rooms for every set of
consecutive lessons.

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
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Achievements and performance (continued)

How the virus control measures affected the Trust’s activities (continued)

For all three schools the requirement, under the temporary continuity direction, to be able to
provide remote learning for students has brought about a strengthening of already existing
arrangements for providing work for those unable to attend school due to illness or some
other circumstance. Additional challenges associated with blended learning relate to this
and to staff wellbeing as consequence of the additional workload. Recovery planning and
the use of the catch-up grant are in place across the Trust.

Any financial uncertainties regarding the Trust’'s financial sustainability,
consideration of going concern and the steps being taken to address these
uncertainties

The Trust continued to receive funding in accordance with its Funding Agreement. Whilst
additional costs were incurred in order to make the sites Covid secure and maintain them as
such, these have been more than offset by the reduction in physical activities undertaken.
Educational trips and visits were cancelled, and therefore the costs associated with them
were not incurred. There was a considerable reduction in income from catering though the
Trust continued to pay its catering staff and cleaning staff in line with national direction.
Nonetheless, there is no significant financial uncertainty about the Trust’s sustainability or its
ability to remain a going concern.

How the contribution of volunteers assisted the Trust in its work in managing in the
changed circumstances
The Trust does not draw heavily on volunteers.

The impact on the Trust’s ability to fundraise and how the Trustees managed this
situation

The Trust does not conduct fundraising itself, however, each of the constituent schools
benefits, from time to time, from funds raised by charities whose objects are to do so in
support of the schools’ aims. These are parent teacher associations regulated by the
Charities Commission and are linked to and share the name of the related individual
schools. They are independent of those schools. Funds raised by them in this accounting
period were lower than otherwise anticipated due to the cancelling of fundraising events.
However, the sums involved are not critical to the Trust’s operations.

How the outbreak of the virus has affected staff, volunteers and beneficiaries and the
implications for the Trust’s operations and activities for the coming year
Fundamentally, staff, volunteers and beneficiaries were affected by the requirement for the
vast majority of them to work or pursue their education from home. With the exception of
those required to shield, all staff, volunteers and beneficiaries were expected to work or
pursue their education within the school settings. Exceptions to this were when staff were
required to self-isolate, in which case they were required to work from home, and likewise
for students. Anticipated concerns about the mental health and wellbeing of staff are not yet
fully understood and will be closely monitored as the Trust undertakes its normal operations
and activities.

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
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How the financial and operational effects of the virus and the control measures
relating to the virus have affected the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Trust during the reporting period

The principal risks and uncertainties remained the same. These were:

¢ The Trust receiving unfavourable Ofsted Reports or insufficient demand for services
creating unsustainability

¢ A macro-economic or natural disaster affecting the Trust's operations

¢ Human resources related risks affecting staff management, integrity, succession
planning, recruitment and retention

¢ Employee legislation impacting on pension funding and contributions to the LGPS
¢  Fluctuations in government funding methodology

Considerable work on risk management was undertaken during the year and the current set
of principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating actions that
are performed, are presented in the ‘financial review' section of this report.

Consideration of any implications for any existing or potential defined benefit
pension liability and investments the Trust holds

The Trust is not aware of any implications for existing or potential defined benefit pension
liability or for any of its investments.

Consideration of any impact on the Trust’s Reserves Policy, level of reserves and any
change to funds set aside for future commitments

The Trust's Reserves Policy is to use its reserves to manage uncertainty and to fund future
purchases or activities in accordance with its Strategic Plan. Further information is provided
in the ‘financial review’ section of this report.

The likely impact of the virus control measures and potential duration of the control
measures on the future aims and activities of the Trust

The aims and activities of the Trust remain the same. Whilst the health, safety and welfare
of staff, volunteers and beneficiaries is paramount, the Trust will continue to look for creative
and innovative ways to deliver on those aims throughout the pandemic and will adapt
accordingly.
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The impact of the virus-related control measures on any wider network of which the
Trust is a part and how this affects the Trust’s operations

In common with all other organisations, engagement with the Trust's wider networks are, in
general, via remote working. Any physical engagement will be subject to rigorous risk
assessment, however beyond educational visits, trips and sporting competitions the impact
of the pandemic on the Trust's partnership operations is relatively low.

Financial review

The financial effect of significant events on the financial performance of the Trust

The Trust's financial position is primarily affected by changes in the number of pupils on roll
at each of its Academies as these determine the vast majority of Trust income. Great care is
therefore take using an integrated approach to curriculum and financial planning in each of
its Academies to ensure that its major expenditure, staffing, is affordable. Around 80% of
expenditure is on staffing, and this must be deployed efficiently so as to enable the Trust's
Academies to deliver the curricula and educational outcomes that they intend within their
means.

The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed

From the Trust's Risk Register, the principal risks to which the Trust is exposed and the
mitigating actions that are performed are:

Risk ID 1

Risk Category Strategy

Risk Description Long term demand risk - insufficient demand for Trust's
services leaves it unsustainable

Business Objective Going concern

Threatened

Preventative Controls and Effective financial controls, integrated curriculum and

Mitigation Processes financial planning, pupil recruitment

Risk ID 4

Risk Category Strategy

Risk Description Stakeholder risk - beneficiaries/other stakeholders don't
consider that Trust provides a valuable/high quality
service

Business Objective Going concern

Threatened

Preventative Controls and Quality of education, reputation within the community

Mitigation Processes means numbers are sustainable and schools are
flourishing
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Financial review (continued)

The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating

actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

29

Operations

Charitable objects risk - Trust receives unfavourable
Ofsted report

Public reputation

Trust Board Strategic Plan, school level plans, monitoring
arrangements

33

Legal

Employment laws risk - risk that legislative requirements
are not known or complied with

Compliance

Arrangements for training and professional development
ensure awareness and understanding is current,
competent, and enacted

40

Legal

Health & safety risk - risk that legislative requirements are
not known or complied with in relation to Health, Safety
and Weilfare

Compliance

Trust wide approach to risk assessment, planned
preventative maintenance, and estates management.
Centralised, transparent record keeping, routine

monitoring and shared training.
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The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID 47
Risk Category Legal
Risk Description General Data Protection Regulations risk - risk that

legislative requirements in relation to General Data
Protection Regulations are not known or complied with

Business Objective Compliance

Threatened

Preventative Controls and Trust Privacy Policy and Records Retention Policy
Mitigation Processes compliant with regulations.

Trust Data Protection Officer appropriately trained and
deployed.

Records retention and disposal schedule in place and
active, monitored by the CEO and the Chair of the Trust.

Risk ID 48
Risk Category Legal
Risk Description Equalities Act risk - risk that legislative requirements in

relation to the Equalities Act 2010 are not known or
complied with

Business Objective Compliance

Threatened

Preventative Controls and Trust Equality policy and local policies for each Academy.

Mitigation Processes
Trustees, through the committees of the Trust Board,
review issues, actions and emerging trends through their
Terms of Reference.

Academy leaders prioritise equity as fundamental to their
operation.
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The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID 49

Risk Category Legal

Risk Description Safeguarding risk - risk that legislative requirements in
relation to safeguarding are not known or complied with

Business Objective Compliance

Threatened

Preventative Controls and Safeguarding policy common to all Academies, regularly

Mitigation Processes updated by HCC and adopted by each LGB.

Single Central Record externally scrutinised . for each
Academy.

Safeguarding routinely reported upon to the Trust Board
through its committees.

Risk ID . 52

Risk CAategory Property

Risk Description Health, Safety and Welfare risk - staff, pupil or third party
fatality/injury or other third party risk

Business Objective Public reputation

Threatened

Preventative Controls and High priority placed on staff health, safety and welfare,

Mitigation Processes through arrangements to manage risk in line with

regulation and recommendation of best practice as set
out by the Health and Safety Executive.

Regular ongoing review of existing documentation and
practice so that planned preventative maintenance, risk
assessment and safe systems of work are developed,
maintained and enhanced as appropriate across the
Trust.
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Financial review (continued)

The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

Risk ID
Risk Category
Risk Description

Business Objective
Threatened

Preventative Controls and
Mitigation Processes

56

Finance

Overall financial control risk - budget - risk that budget will
be in deficit

Going concern

Teacher staffing analysis in relation to Value for Money
and Academy strategic priorities.

Monthly management accounts.

Independent Trust level access to management
information.

65

Finance

Financial systems risk - access - risk of unauthorised
access to financial systems

Business continuity

Scheme of access to different levels of the Trust's
networks and finance systems are regularly reviewed for
appropriateness of access.

Security policies in operation.

128

People

Staff risk - staff matters not referred to HR professionals,
may lead to tribunals

Organisational efficacy

Focussed language around rights and responsibilities
routinely informed by advice from HR specialists which is
then translated into appropriate HR policies applicable
across the Trust.
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The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID 136
Risk Category Information
Risk Description Management information risk - quality - risk that

information produced (financial and non-financial) for
trustees and senior management is not accurate or not in
a format suitable for monitoring the performance of the

Trust
Business Objective High quality governance
Threatened
Preventative Controls and Emphasis in managerial documentation on clarity,
Mitigation Processes objectivity and transparency.
Open access to granular detailed working that supports
higher level information.
Ongoing incremental improvements that are compliant
with the expectations of regulatory bodies.
Ongoing review at relevant committees of the Trust Board,
and the Board itself.
Risk ID 141
Risk Category Security
Risk Description Strategic risk - technology - information security risk
Business Objective Business continuity
Threatened
Preventative Controls and IT service providers have integrated, embedded security
Mitigation Processes services

Staff across the organisation are appropriately trained and
routinely updated.

Advice from sector bodies about emergent risks is acted
upon internally and by external partners.
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The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed, and mitigating
actions that are performed (continued)

Risk ID 145

Risk Category Project/ Programme

Risk Description JWS Sports Centre Joint Use Agreement extension/
renegotiation - Joint Use Agreement

Business Objective Business continuity

Threatened .

Preventative Controls and Routine, scheduled engagement with the Borough of

Mitigation Processes Broxbourne

Revision of management protocol.

Timely approach to partnership working which, if fruit is
not borne, facilitates potential engagement with a new
partner.

Key factors likely to affect the Trust’s financial performance or position going
forward

The key factors likely to affect the Trust's financial performance or position going forward
are the reputations of the Academies, pupil numbers on roll, staffing costs and staff
availability, effective integrated curriculum and financial planning, educational outcomes and
Ofsted reports.

Local planning suggests a drop in pupil numbers across the area, there are the same
number of places available but fewer children to take them up. This may impact on income
in the primary school and filter to the secondary school.

Recruitment from primary to secondary were badly affected by the inability to bring people
on site and market the school, which relies heavily on first hand impressions from on-site
visits which were severely limited by Covid-19 arrangements. Recruitment from year 11 to
the sixth form has returned to pre-Covid levels, largely because the school .is able to
maintain face to face contact and to support transition in ways that are normal and were
made impossible by the March 2020 lockdown.

Explanation of the financial position of the Trust at the reporting date with context
and insight into material or significant figures and balances

The Education and Skills Funding Agency views retaining at least one-month's salary cost
as a revenue reserve as a prudent measure. Whilst the risks of the risks of unplanned
closure are currently low, such a policy will help to address the risks of such an event on the
Trust's beneficiaries, its staff and volunteers.
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Explanation of the financial position of the Trust at the reporting date with context
and insight into material or significant figures and balances (continued)

The Trust policy is therefore to retain at least one month’s salary as a central reserve.

The Education and Skills Funding Agency also states that Trustees need to consider how
"liquid" their revenue reserves should be. A review of best practice suggests that for
individual academies, an operating reserve of 2.5% of salary costs is appropriate to ensure
that each is able to operate within its means in the short and medium term.

The Trust’s policy is therefore for each individual academy to retain an operating reserve of
2.5% of budgeted salary costs for the financial year. This is in addition to any budgeted
revenue surplus, and is intended to ensure that, in the short and medium term, operating
reserves are neither higher than necessary, tying up money unnecessarily, or too low,
increasing the risk to the individual academy’s ability to carry on its activities in future in the
event of financial difficulties.

The level of reserves held centrally or locally is subject to annual review.

Covid-19 has seen a rise in reserves across the Trust as a whole. This is due to a
combination of Covid-19 related factors, principally the partial closure of sites, the reduction
in on-site catering expenditure as well as income, and the almost total cancellation of
educational visits and trips.

The balance at The John Warner School has increased with a view making financial
contributions to two Condition Improvement Fund bids for roof and window replacement on
its oldest buildings. At The Cranbourne Primary School similar savings are intended to
support future infrastructure improvement, whilst Roselands Primary School roughly breaks
even currently.

Financial report for the year

The operational activities of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2021
generated total income of £11.164m (2020 - £10.528m), which was primarily derived from
core GAG funding of £9.616m (2020 - £9.082m). Total expenditure for the year ended 31
August 2021 amounted to £11.936m (2020 - £11.536m) including depreciation on tangible
fixed assets of £0.795m (2020 - £0.795m).

The Academy Trust continues to recognise its liability in respect of the Hertfordshire Local
Government Pension Scheme on its balance sheet, which as at 31 August 2021 amounted
to £5.166m (2020 - £3.479m). The Academy Trust makes contributions to this pension
scheme in accordance with the advice of the actuary and these contributions are funded
from the General Annual Grant.
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Key financial performance indicators

In terms of financial key performance indicators, the Trustees’ main goal is to maintain a
balanced budget at all times and to therefore undertake the Academy Trust's educational
operations in such a way that all costs incurred are fully funded by an identified and
receivable source of income.

The Trustees monitor expenditure against budget during the year and look at forecast cash
flows to ensure continuing solvency.

In order to ensure value for money and sustainability Trustees’ decision making is informed
by benchmarking exercises embedded in the Education and Skills Funding Agency’s School
Resource Management Self-Assessment Tool with a particular focus on actual, budgeted
and forecast staff costs as a proportion of revenue income with the aim that these ratios
should be maintained between 77% and 82% in each case.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, the Trustees have adopted the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Promoting the success of the company
The Hoddesdon School Trust's Directors are its Trustees.

All Trustees are bound by the Nolan Principles and are signatories to a Code of Conduct
and are committed to acting in the way they consider most likely to promote the success of
the Trust by having regard for the likely consequences of any decision they make in the long
term, and for the interests of the Trust's employees.

Trustees promote the Trust's ethical approach to business relationships with its suppliers,
and with all its community stakeholders. They are conscious of the potential impact of the
Trust's operations on the community and the environment, and are at all times mindful of the
desirability of the Trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct as
well as educational outcomes. Relationships with suppliers and stakeholders are grounded
in the firmly held belief in the need to act fairly, as between members of the company.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

The Trustees have a robust attitude to risk management. The risk register matrix defines
and considers risk, its potential impact, control procedures, monitoring and responsibility.
The register is reviewed annually by the Audit and Risk Committee. The risk register matrix
categorises risk under the following headings: strategic; reputational; operational and
compliance risks. Trustees additionally consider business continuity planning.
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Financial and risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Trustees complete criminal records bureau checks as they undertake site visits in respect of
their work in safeguarding, health and safety, admissions and other relevant activities.
Trustees receive regular reports from staff and Trustee feedback following onsite visits.

A comprehensive insurance policy is in place providing cover for the main risks, alongside
statutory requirements.

Reserves policy
The Trustees’ policy is to use its reserves to manage uncertainty and to fund future
purchases or activities in accordance with its Strategic Plan.

Trustees retain at least one-month's salary cost as a revenue reserve because, whilst the
risks of unplanned closure are currently low, such a policy will help to address the risks
associated with the impact of such an event on the Trust's beneficiaries, its staff and
volunteers.

Trustees also consider the degree of liquidity required by their reserves in order to fulfil the
Trust's objectives, and to that effect each individual academy is expected to retain an
operating reserve of 2.5% of budgeted salary costs for the financial year. This is in addition

_to any budgeted revenue surplus, and is intended to ensure that, in the short and medium
term, operating reserves are neither higher than necessary, tying up money unnecessarily,
or too low, increasing the risk to the individual academy’s ability to carry on its activities in
future in the event of financial difficulties.

The level of reserves held centrally or locally will be subject to annual review, and as at the
balance sheet date, the Academy Trust had free reserves of £1,695547 (2020 -
£1,504,266).

The Trustees intend to utilise these reserves in accordance with their published Reserves
Policy to deliver the objectives set out in the Trust's Strategic Plan which focuses on its
Governance, Leadership and Management, Safeguarding and Wellbeing, on all aspects of
Organisational Maintenance, Development and Compliance, and on the continued
improvement of the Curriculum and Educational Outcomes provided by the Trust for its
_beneficiaries.

Investment policy

The Trustees’ investment powers are set down in the Academy Trust's Memorandum and
Articles of Association, which permit the investment of monies of the Academy Trust which
are not immediately required for its purposes in such investments, securities or property as
may be thought fit subject to any restrictions which may from time to time be imposed or
required by law. The Academy Trust's current policy is to invest surplus funds in short-term
cash deposits. ‘
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Principal risks and uncertainties

As mentioned previously, the Academy Trust has a comprehensive risk management
approach embedded throughout all of its operations. The Trustees have assessed the major
risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to teaching and other
operational areas of the Trust and its finances. Appropriate systems, policies, procedures
and controls have been put in place so as to ensure that the various risks do not impact
adversely on the Trust's operations. These have been detailed in the section ‘financial
review'.

Fundraising

The Academy Trust does not conduct fundraising itself, however each of the constituent
schools benefits, from time to time, from funds raised. by charities whose objects are to do
so in support of the schools’ aims. These are Parent-Teacher Associations regulated by the
Charities Commission and are linked to and share the name of the related individual
schools. They are independent of those schools.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions

Annual -energy usage and associated annual greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions are
reported pursuant to the Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships
(Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 (“the 2018 Regulations”) that came into force
1 April 2019.

Organisational boundary

In accordance with the 2018 Regulations, the energy use and associated greenhouse gas
emissions are for those assets owned or operated within the UK only. This includes all 3
schools controlled during the reporting period along with minibuses and personal vehicles
used for business mileage (“grey fleet”).

Reporting period
The annual reporting period is 1 September to 31 August each year and the energy and
carbon emissions are aligned to this period.

Quantification and reporting methodology

The 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol
Corporate Acbounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed. The 2021 UK
Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting were used in emission
calculations. The report has been reviewed independently by Briar Consulting Engineers
Limited.
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Quantification and reporting methodology

The electricity and gas consumption were compiled from invoice records. Energy and
emissions associated with minibuses were calculated from diesel costs, while grey fleet was
calculated from mileage expense claims. Generally gross calorific values were used except
for mileage energy calculations as per Government GHG Conversion Factors.

The associated emissions are divided into mandatory and voluntary emissions according to
the 2018 Regulations, then further divided into the direct combustion of fuels and the
operation of facilities (scope 1), indirect emissions from purchased electricity (scope 2) and
further indirect emissions that occur as a consequence of Trust activities but occur from
sources not owned or controlled by the organisation (scope 3).

Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh):

Energy type 2019/20 2020/21

Mandatory requirements:

Gas 1,208,902 1,253,502
Purchased electricity from the grid | 664,241 626,066
Transport fuel 15,230 2,883
Total energy (mandatory) 1,888,373 1,882,451
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Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported energy use (tCO.e):

Emission source ) 2019/20 2020/21

Mandatory requirements:

Scope 1

Natural gas 2223 229.6
Transport - Company owned vehicles (mini-buses) 3.5 0.7
Scope 2

Purchased electricity (location-based) 154.9 132.9
Scope 3 -

Transport — Business travel in employee-owned 0.2 0.0
vehicles

Total gross emissions (mandatory) 380.8 363.2
Intensity ratios (mandatory emissions only)

Tonnes of COze per pupil 0.183 0.176
Tonnes of COze per square meter floor area 0.028 0.026

Intensity ratio
Two intensity ratios are reported showing emissions (tCOze) per pupil and per square meter
floor area.

Emissions per pupil is the recommended ratio for the sector for consistency and
comparability and pupil numbers are based on the Autumn census of the respective year.
Emissions per square meter floor area is reported to reflect the energy efficiency of the
buildings, which are the source of the majority of emissions.

Energy efficiency action during current financial year

At the John Warner School, the Trust have continued this year with an ongoing programme
of applying solar film to the east facing glazing of the original building. This will help control
solar gains in the strong summer sun, reducing overheating and the need for comfort
cooling.
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Energy efficiency action during current financial year (continued)

Lighting upgrades continue to be rolled out across the Trust's schools, replacing fluorescent
tubing with LED lighting. New energy efficient ovens at The John Warner School kitchens
are also anticipated to provide energy savings.

Sustainability issues continue to be embedded within day-to-day activities, particularly as
the Trust is seeking to achieve the Eco-Schools Award. This encourages actions from staff
and pupils alike, such as by improving recycling rates by providing paper recycling bins in
every room. The same approach to sustainability action is applied across all schools within
the Trust.

Plans for future years

Future strategy
The Academy Trust's future activities and events will be those that Trustees consider most
likely to ensure that the Academy Trust delivers on the future strategy articulated above.

Impact of future activities and events
The impact of future activities and events will be evaluated in accordance with the

indicators, milestones and benchmarks set out in the ‘Achievements and Performance’
element of this Strategic Report.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others

Although the Academy Trust maintains restricted funds to deal with income that are
earmarked for a particular purpose by donors, sponsors, and other funders, the Academy
Trust does not hold, and the Trustees do not anticipate that it will in the future hold, any
funds as custodian for any third party.
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AUDITOR
In so far as the Trustees are aware:

+ there is no relevant audit information of which the Academy Trust's auditor is unaware;
and

¢ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that

information.

The Trustees’ Annual Report is approved by order of the Board of Trustees and the
Strategic Report (included therein) is approved by the Board of Trustees in their capacity as
the directors at a meeting on 2 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees
Mr D J Kennedy
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The
Hoddesdon School Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and
otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hoddesdon School Trust, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief
Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance
As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance
Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’
Report and in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities.

All decisions reserved to the Trustees are taken by the Board as a whole, in accordance
with its Terms of Reference and its Scheme of Delegation. Board committees meet during
the year to consider detailed matters and recommend decisions to the full Board.

During the period for which this report accounts, the Trust Board, in addition to its Local
Governing Bodies, operated an Audit and Risk Assurance Committee, a Finance
Committee, a Personnel and Pay Committee and an Education Committee, each operating
under clearly articulated Terms of Reference.

The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee considered issues relating to the systems and
processes of control and risk management that operated throughout The Hoddesdon School
Trust, and to made recommendations to the Board. It met five times in this accounting
period, and will meet at least three times in future accounting periods.

The Finance Committee performed detailed scrutiny of all management accounts, budgets
and revisions, and related financial matters. It is chaired by a Chartered Accountant. The
committee will meet at least four times in future accounting periods.

The Personnel and Pay committee met three times in the accounting period, will meet at
_ least three times in future accounting periods.

The Education and Standards Committee met three times in the accounting period under
the name ‘The Education Committee’. The committee will meet at least three times in future
accounting periods.
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The Trust Board retained the decision not to convene additional regular committee meetings
in order to maximise Trustee first-hand engagement with work of the Trust, however a
Sports Centre committee and ad hoc groups of Trustees are established, as and when
required, to consider specific issues and make recommendations to the Board.

The Chair of the Board of Trustees of The Hoddesdon School Trust, prior to retirement on
31 August 2021, was the Accounting Officer during the accounting period and worked
closely with the other Trustees and the senior staff of the Academy Trust. The day-to-day
management of the Academy Trust rests with the current Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Headteacher, the Chief Financial Officer and the Headteachers of the constituent
Academies. This Senior Management Team has the overall responsibility for operations,
across the Trust.

The Board of Trustees has formally met six times during the year. Attendance during the
year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr D A Aliman (Accounting Officer)
Mrs J E M Carson (Co-opted)

Mr G A Dykes

Mrs F L Ives

Mr D J Kennedy (Chair)

Mr A C Lebaigue

Mr R J McCarthy BEM

Mrs R E Semark (Co-opted)

Mr A Shah-Cundy

Mrs M C Sykes
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The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee met five times during the year, two of which were
Extra-Ordinary Meetings in order to exercise strategic oversight of the Trust's operations in
relation to the Covid-19 pandemic. Attendance at the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr D A Allman (Accounting Officer) 5 5
Mr D J Kennedy 5 5
Mr A C Lebaigue 4 4
Mr R J McCarthy BEM 5 5

The Finance Committee met four times during the year. The fifth was absorbed in to a Trust
Board meeting. Attendance at the Finance Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr D A Allman (Accounting Officer) 4 5
Mr G A Dykes 4 5
Mr D J Kennedy 4 5
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The Personnel and Pay Committee met three times during the year. Attendance at the Pay
Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr D A Allman (Accounting Officer) 3 3
Mrs F L Ives 2 3
Mr D J Kennedy 3 3
Mr A C Lebaigue 1 3
Mr R J McCarthy BEM 3 3

The Education and Standards Committee met three times during the year. Attendance at
the Education and Standards Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr D A Aliman (Accounting Officer) 3 3
Mrs F L Ives 2 3
Mr D J Kennedy 3 3
Mr R J McCarthy BEM 3 3

The Academy Trust conducted an annual assessment of the Trust Board’s skills and
experience and a review of the Board's composition in terms of skills, effectiveness,
leadership and impact, using the Department for Education’s Governance Handbook and
the Governance Competency Framework.

Recommendations from this process were that that Local Governing Bodies receive
appropriate training in relation to:

a) Financial frameworks and accountability

b) Budget monitoring and self-evaluation in relation to financial performance, efficiency
and control

c) The relationship between pay, performance and wider financial planning.
d) Risk management and internal control
e) Educational standards

Appropriate arrangements have been put in place to provide the required training using a
range of providers both face to face and online to cater for the range of preferred learning
styles.

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the
Academy Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer
understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes
achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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Review of Value for Money (continued)

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has
provided good value for money during the academic year, and reports to the Board of
Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use on benchmarking data
where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered and improved
value for money during the year by:

¢ The allocation of resources to best promote the aims and values of the Academy Trust;

*

The targeting of resources to best improve standards and the quality of provision; and
¢ The use of resources to best support the various educational needs of all students.

In accordance with the principles of PPN 02/20 and PPN 04/20 during this accounting
period no staff were furloughed, ad-hoc such as examination invigilators and cover teachers
were paid in line with the average expected income for their posts by taking into account
comparable historic data, and at risk suppliers such as the Trust's cleaning service and
catering service were retained so that they would be in a position to resume normal contract
delivery once the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak is over.

Example 1: Educational Outcomes ~ Disadvantaged Pupils

Across the Academy Trust, spending is guided by The Sutton Trust-EEF Teaching and
Learning Toolkit (http:/educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/toolkit/). This provides a
summary of educational research and so offers guidance for teachers and schools on how
to use their resources to improve the attainment of disadvantaged pupils, both in terms of
making an initial choice between strategies, and in implementing a strategy as effectively as
possible.

The authors acknowledge that ‘the relationship between spending and pupil cutcomes is not
simple’ and that ‘at school level, it is clear that different ways of spending school budgets
can have very different impacts on pupil attainment, and choosing what to prioritise is not
easy’. They accept that ‘even once a decision to implement a particular strategy has been
taken there are a wide variety of factors which determine its impact’.

We have made our decisions based on the average impact of a particular strategy on
attainment, the strength of the evidence supporting the claim of impact, and the related cost,
as set out in the toolkit, together with our own knowledge of the specific needs of eligible
pupils. Further details about the impact of this are available under ‘Pupil Premium’ on the
website of each of the constituent Academies.

Example 2: Continuing Professional Development of Staff
The continuing professional development of staff is essential to building organisational
capacity, and sustaining improvements in effectiveness and efficiency.
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Review of Value for Money (continued)

Example 2: Continuing Professional Development of Staff (continued)

Teaching staff across the Trust have benefited from shared training in educational practice
and in leadership development at significantly reduced costs because that training has
either been provided in-house by existing trained facilitators, or by external trainers at
reduced unit cost because of the opportunity to share and thus proportionately reduce the
cost to individual schools.

The impact is both educational and cultural, enabling the Trust to develop internal
coherence and strength by effecting real change in measurable outcomes for negligible
expenditure and therefore represents excellent value for money.

Example 3: Contract review, shared staff and joint purchasing
Contract review for both cleaning and energy services means benchmarking data shows
this is very good value across the Trust.

Sharing staff across Academies enables a reduction in non-contact time in one Academy
and the provision of planning, preparation and assessment time in others, thereby securing
internal efficiencies.

Joint purchasing for consumables and Trust wide contracts for reprographics will enhance
benefits further and internal expertise in IT procurement continues to bring about enhanced
value for money, particularly regarding hardware replacements and upgrades.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place at
the Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed
together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented
. to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that
has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.
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The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust’'s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties
and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

¢ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

¢ regular reviews by the Board of Trustees of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes;

¢ setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

¢ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines,
delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

¢ identification and management of risks.

In accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook (September
2020), The Hoddesdon School Trust decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Strictly
Education Ltd to give advice on financial and other matters and perform a range of checks
on the Academy Trust’s financial and other systems. The checks to be carried out were
determined by the Trust Board, and were informed by the Trust’s Risk Register.

The foci for internal assurance in the accounting period were:

¢ Risk management

¢ Management information and the quality of the Board pack
+ Business continuity and disaster recovery.

On at least an annual basis the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the
Audit and Risk Assurance Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the
discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities and annually prepares an
annual summary report to the Committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the Committee consider actions and assess year
on year progress.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question, the review has
been informed by:

¢ theinternal assurance work;

¢ the work of the external auditor;
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Review of effectiveness (contiriued)
+ the financial management and governance self-assessment processes and the school
resource:management self-assessment tool;

¢ the work of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee and of the Finance Committee;
‘and

¢ the work of the executive managers within the: Academy Trust who have responsibility
for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework,

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 2 December 2021 and signed on its behalf

by:
(Chair of Trustees) (Accounting Officer)
Mr D J Kennedy Mr D A Allman
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As Accounting Officer of The Hoddesdon School Trust, I have considered my responsibility
to notify the Academy Trust's Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms
and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy
Trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Trustees are able to identify any material
irregular or improper use. of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the.
Academies Financial Handbook.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance
have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement,

these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

(L

Accounting Officer: Mr D A Allman

2 December 2021
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Academy Trust and of
its income and expenditure for that year. In preparing these financial statements, the

Trustees are required to:
¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ observe the methods and principles in the Charities’ SORP FRS 102 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021;

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial .

statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Academy Trust will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Academy Trust's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Academy Trust and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Academy Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. :

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Academy
Trust applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of
propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants
received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial
information included on the Academy Trust's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 2 December 2021 and signed on its behalf

by:$@%

Chair of Trustees: Mr D J Kennedy
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Hoddesdon School Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Hoddesdon School Trust (the ‘charitable
company’) for the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the statement of financial
activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the principal accounting policies
and the notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (the Charities SORP
2019) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31
August 2021 and of its income and expenditure, for the period then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice;

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;
and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP FRS102 and Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provideAa basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the charitable company’s ability. to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Trustees’ report, which is also the directors’ report for the
purposes of company law and includes the strategic report, for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;
and

+ theTrustees’ report, which is also the directors’ report for the purposes of company law
and includes the strategic report, has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the Trustees’ report including the strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

+ certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Tustees’ responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are
also the directors for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of
irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as
follows:

¢ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

+ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the charitable company through
discussions with management, and from our knowledge of the Academy Trust sector;

+ the identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly
and the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit;

¢ we considered the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the charitable
company and determined that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, the
Charities SORP FRS102, the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, the
Academies Financial Handbook 2020, and the Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the ESFA as well as legislation pertaining to safeguarding in the UK;
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

¢ we understood how the charitable company is complying with those legal and
regulatory frameworks by making inquiries to management and those responsible for
legal, compliance and governance procedures. We corroborated our inquiries through
our review of the minutes of Trustees’ meetings and papers provided to the Trustees

¢ we planned and carried out a separate limited assurance engagement in respect of
regularity, propriety and compliance in accordance with the Framework and Guide for
External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA,
as set out in our separate independent reporting accountant’'s assurance report on
reqgularity.

We assessed the susceptibility of the charitable company’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

+ making enquiries of management and those charged with governance as to where they
considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and

alleged fraud; and

+ considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
+ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
+ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

+ tested the authorisation of expenditure as part of our substantive testing thereon;

+ assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting
estimates set out in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and

+ used data analytics to identify any significant or unusual transactions and identify the
rationale for them.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we
designed procedures which included, but were not limited to:

~+ agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
¢ reviewing the minutes of Trustees’ meetings;

¢ enquiring of management and those charged with governance as to actual and
potential litigation and claims;

¢ reviewing any available correspondence with Ofsted, ESFA and HMRC; and
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

¢ the work undertaken in relation to the limited assurance engagement in respect of
regularity, propriety and compliance in accordance with the Framework and Guide for
External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA,
as set out in our separate independent reporting accountant’'s assurance report on
regularity.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed
that laws and regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would
become aware of non-compliance. International Standards on Auditing also limit the audit
procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the
trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website frc.org.uk/auditors responsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the charitable company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

g ok (S

Katharine Patel (Senior Statutory Auditor) 17 December 2021
For and on behalf of Buzzacott LLP, Statutory Auditor :

130 Wood Street

London )

EC2V 6DL
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Independent reporting auditor’s assurance report on regularity to The Hoddesdon
School Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 14 September 2017 and
further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included
in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, we have carried out an engagemeht to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
The Hoddesdon School Trust during the year from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Hoddesdon School Trust and the ESFA in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to The Hoddesdon School Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state
in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Hoddesdon School Trust and the ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Hoddesdon School Trust’s Accounting Officer and
the reporting auditor

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Hoddesdon School
Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 March 2011
and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our
profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance
with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020
to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income
received during the year from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied
to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Approach ,
" We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External

Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a
limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to
express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance
engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
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Approach (continued)
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity
and propriety of the Academy Trust’'s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

¢ An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across all of the
Academy Trust's activities;

¢ Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including
enquiry, identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence
across all areas identified as well as additional verification work where considered
necessary; and

¢ Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work
completed as part of our financial statements audit in order to support the regularity
conclusion.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern
them.

B bk (AP

Buzzacott LLP 17 December 2021
Chartered Accountants

130 Wood Street

London

EC2V 6DL
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Statement of financial activities (including income and expenditure account) Year to 31 August 2021

DRAFT
Restricted funds
Unrestricted Fixed 2021 2020
"general assets Total Total
fund General fund funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital grants 1 2,011 43,863 —_ 45,874  (229,296)
Charitable activities
. Funding for the Academy Trust's
educational operations 4 58,840 10,931,980 — 10,990,820 10,362,552
Other trading activities : 2 126,612 — _ 126,612 393,696
Investments 3 278 —_ — 278 1,104
Total income 187,741 10,975,843 — 11,163,584 10,528,056
Expenditure from
Charitable activities
. Academy Trust's educational
operations 5 — 11,140,380 795,483 11,935,863 11,536,390
Total expenditure — 11,140,380 795,483 11,935,863 11,536,390
Net income (expenditure) before
transfers 187,741 (164,537)  (795,483) (772,279) (1,008,334)
Transfers between funds 16 3,540 (3,540) — —_ —
Net income (expenditure) for year 191,281 (168,077)  (795,483) (772,279) (1,008,334)
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial loss on defined benefit
pension scheme 21 — (1,323,000) — (1,323,000) (644,000)
Net movement in funds 191,281 (1,491,077) (795,483) (2,095,279) (1,652,334)
Reconciliation of funds
Total fund balances brought forward at
1 September 2020 1,504,266 (3,285,754) 43,636,450 41,854,962 43,507,296
Total fund balances carried forward
at 31 August 2021 1,695,547 (4,776,831) 42,840,967 39,759,683 41,854,962

All activities derive from continuing operations.

All recognised gains and losses are included in the statement of financial activities.
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2021 2021 2020 2020.
Note £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 11 42,840,967 43,636,450
Investments 12 25 25
42,840,992 43,636,475
Current assets
Stock 13 26,677 17,846
Debtors 14 354,290 360,089
Cash at bank and in hand 2,544,560 1,979,690
2,925,527 2,357,625
Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due o
within one year 15  (840,836) (660,138)
Net current assets 2,084,691 1,697,487
Net assets excluding
pension scheme liability 44,925,683 45,333,962
Defined benefit pension scheme
liability 21 (5,166,000) (3,479,000)
Total net assets .39,759,683 41,854,962
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund 16 42,840,967 43,636,450
Restricted income fund 16 389,169 193,246
Pension reserve 16 (5,166,000) (3,479,000)
Total restricted funds 38,064,136 40,350,696
Unrestricted income funds
General fund 1,695,547 1,504,266
Total funds 39,759,683 41,854,962

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 2
December 2021 and are signed on their behalf by:

Chair: Mr D J Kennedy

The Hoddesdon School Trust
Company Limited by Guarantee

Registration Number: 07555066 (England and Wales)
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Statement of cash flows Year to 31 August 2021

2021 2020
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities A 520,729 376,426
Cash flows from investing activities B 44,141 (250,030)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 564,870 126,396
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020 1,979,690 1,853,294
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021 C 2,544,560 1,979,690

A Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020
£ £
Net expenditure for the year (as per the statement of financial
activities) (772,279) (1,008,334)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation charges 795,483 805,146
Capital grants from DfE, other capital income less clawback (43,863) 241,134
Interest receivable (note 3) (278) (1,104)
Increase in stocks . : (8,831) (2,177)
Decrease in debtors . 5,799 40,050
Increase (decrease) in creditors 180,698 (15,289)
Defined benefit pension finance cost 61,000 50,000
Defined benefit pension cost less contributions 303,000 267,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 520,729 376,426
B Cash flows from investing activities
2021 2020
£ £
Interest received 278 1,104
Purchase of tangible fixed assets —_ (10,000)
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA including clawback payments 43,863 (241,134)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 44,141 (250,030)
C Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 2,544,560 1,979,690
Total cash and cash equivalents ' 2,544,560 1,979,690
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D Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 At 31

September Cash August

2020 flows 2021

£ £ £

Cash at bank 1,979,690 564,870 2,544,560
Total 1,979,690 564,870 2,544,560
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Statement of accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied
consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty,
is set out below. :

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS
102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and
the Companies Act 2006.

The Hoddesdon School Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The financial statements are presented in sterling and rounded to the nearest pound.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there

are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make
" this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation

for issue of the financial statements.

The Trustees have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties
about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. This assessment
included a consideration of the continuing impact of coronavirus on the day to day
operations of the Academy Trust and possible financial consequences. The Academy
Trust has and continues to develop contingency plans which are being successfully
implemented.

The Trustees consider that that the Academy Trust has sufficient cash resources to
continue for the foreseeable future, despite the current pandemic, and thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All income is recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt
is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related
conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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Income (continued)

Grants
Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The
" balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is
shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of
meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until
the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

The General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from
income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life
of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in
the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is
entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Other trading income
Other trading income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is
receivable and to the extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer
economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be
required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of
direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each
activity.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including
support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to
charitable activities.

Alil expenditure is stated net of recoverable VAT.
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Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA.
Payments received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are
excluded from the statement of financial activities as the Trust does not have control over
the charitable application of the funds. The Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation
towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial
activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 23.

Tangible fixed assets

All tangible assets purchased that have a cost that exceeds £5,000 and an expected
useful economic life that exceeds one year are capitalised and classified as fixed assets.
Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Depreciation is
provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land and assets in the course of
construction, at rates calculated to write each asset down to its estimated residual value
evenly over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings over 15 to 54 years
Plant and machinery  over 4 to 20 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. No depreciation will be charged
on these assets until they have been completed and brought into use.

A review for potential impairment of fixed assets is carried out if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable
or in instances when the remaining useful life is assessed to be in excess of 50 years.
Impairment losses that may arise would be recognised in the statement of financial
activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result
of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in
settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are
recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt
or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date
as a result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic
benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based
on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The
financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis
are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt
instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not
financial instruments.

Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments,
and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security
are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not
deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there
is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of
the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from
taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes. '

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’
Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are
defined benefit schemes.
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Pensions benefits (continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost
of pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the
pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll.
The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-
employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting
purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are
measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They
are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period
by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in
other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and
losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted funds comprise the accumulated surpluses of unrestricted income over
expenditure, which are available for use in furtherance of the general objectives of the
Academy Trust and at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific conditions imposed by donors. The purpose
and use of the restricted funds are set out in the notes to the financial statements.
Amounts unspent at the year end are carried forward in the balance sheet.

Restricted fixed assets funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital
purposes imposed by the funders where the assets acquired or created are tangible fixed
assets. Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with
restrictions imposed by the funder and include grants from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency and the Department for Education.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. )

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

¢ The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a
variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are
disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability;

+ Estimating the useful economic life of tangible fixed assets for the purposes of

calculating depreciation; and

Critical areas of judgement
The Trustees do not consider that there are any areas of judgement which are critical to
the Academy Trust’s financial statements.
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1 Donations and capital grants

Restricted

fixed 2021 2020

Unrestricted  Restricted assets Total . Total

funds funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £ £

Capital grants — 43,863 — 43,863 54,162
Capital grant clawback — —_ — —_— (295,296)
—_ 43,863 — 43,863 (241,134)

Other donations 2,011 — — 2,011 11,838
2,011 43,863 — 45,874 (229,296)

The capital grant clawback relates to CIF funding received in prior years for a capital project where
the costs of development were less than the original construction contract.

Restricted
fixed 2020
Unrestricted  Restricted assets Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Capital grants — 44,162 10,000 54,162
Capital grant clawback — (295,296) — (295,296)
— (2561,134) 10,000 (241,134)
Other donations 11,838 — — 11,838
11,838 (2561,134) 10,000 (229,296)

2 Other trading activities

2021 2020
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities/lettings income 448 — 448 3,477
Trip income 3,388 — 3,388 91,744
Catering income 94,227 — 94,277 259,209
Miscellaneous income 28,499 — 28,499 39,266
126,612 — 126,612 393,696
2020
Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
£ £ £
Hire of facilities/lettings income 3,477 —_ 3,477
Trip income — 91,744 91,744
Catering income ‘ 259,209 — 259,209
Miscellaneous income ' 39,266 — 39,266
301,952 91,744 393,696
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3 Investment income

2021 2020
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Interest receivable 278 — 278 1,104
2020
Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds’
£ £ £
Interest receivable 1,104 —_— 1,104
4 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations :
2021 2020*
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
DfE / ESFA revenue grants
. General Annual Grant (GAG) — 9,616,463 9,616,463 9,081,719
Other DfE / ESFA grants
. UIFSM — 91,108 91,108 95,847
. Pupil Premium — 328,734 328,734 352,294
. Other —_ 621,809 621,809 599,490

— 10,658,114 10,658,114 10,129,350

Other Government grants
. Local authority grants — 161,172 161,172 113,771

161,172 161,172 113,771

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up premium — 80,714 80,714 —
Other COVID-19 funding — 31,980 31,980 -

Other income from the Academy Trust's
educational operations 58,840 — 58,840 376,426

58,840 10,931,980 10,990,820 10,362,552

The Trust received £80,714 of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this
funding totalled £80,714. ’

*Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received
from the Department for Education and ESFA, the Academy Trust’s funding for Universal Infant Free
Schoo! Meals and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading,
but as separate lines under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been
reclassified.
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4 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations (continued)

2020
Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
£ £ £

DfE / ESFA revenue grants
. General Annual Grant (GAG) — 9,081,719 9,081,719
. Other DfE / ESFA grants — 1,047,631 1,047,631

— 10,129,350 10,129,350

Other Government grants
. Local authority grants — 113,771 113,771
— 113,771 113,771

Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational
operations 119,431 — 119,431

119,431 10,243,121 10,362,552

5 Expenditure
Non pay expenditure

Staff 2021 2020
costs Other Total Total
(note 8) Premises costs funds funds
£ £ £ £
Academy Trust's

educational operations:
. Direct costs 7,894,062 795,482 664,988 9,354,532 9,061,476
. Support costs 1,181,365 845,011 554,955 2,581,331 2,474,914

9,075,427 1,640,493 1,219,943 11,935,863 11,536,390

Non pay expenditure
Staff 2020
costs Other Total
(note 8) Premises costs funds
£ £ £
Academy Trust's educational operations:
. Direct costs 7,526,530 805,146 729,800 9,061,476
. Support costs 1,133,828 635,833 705,253 2,474,914

8,660,358 1,440,979 1,435,053 11,536,390
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5 Expenditure (continued)

2021 2020
Total Total
funds funds
£ £

Net expenditure for the year includes:
Operating lease rentals - 28,154
Depreciation 795,483 805,146

Fees payable to auditor
. Audit services . 15,173 15,575
. Other assurance services 3,150 3,100
. Other services 4,975 4,925
6 Charitable activities — Academy Trust's educational operations

2021 2020
Total Total
funds funds
£ £
Direct costs 9,354,532 9,061,476
Support costs 2,581,331 2,474,914

11,935,863 11,536,390

2021 2020

Total Total

funds funds

Analysis of support costs £ £
Support staff costs 1,181,365 1,133,828
Premises costs 845,011 635,833
Legal costs — other 5,264 4,149
Other support costs 489,855 648,373
Governance costs 59,836 52,731
Total support costs 2,581,331 2,474,914
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7 Comparative information
Restricted funds

Unrestricted Fixed 2020
general assets Total
fund General fund funds
£ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital grants 11,838 (251,134) 10,000 (229,296)
Charitable activities
. Funding for the Academy Trust's educational
operations 119,431 10,243,121 — 10,362,552
Other trading activities 301,952 91,744 — 393,696
Investments 1,104 — — 1,104
Total income 434,325 10,083,731 10,000 10,528,056
Expenditure from
Charitable activities
. Academy Trust’s educational operations — 10,731,244 805,146 11,536,390
Total expenditure — 10,731,244 805,146 11,536,390
Net income (expenditure) before transfers 434,325 (647,513) (795,146) (1,008,334)
Transfers between funds (19,588) 19,588 —_ —_
Net income (expenditure) for year 414,737 (627,925) (795,146) (1,008,334)
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme — (644,000) —  (644,000)
Net movement in funds 414,737  (1,271,925) (795,146) (1,652,334)
Reconciliation of funds
Total fund balances brought forward at 1
September 2019 1,089,528 (2,013,829) 44,431,596 43,507,296
Total fund balances carried forward at 31 August

2020 1,504,266 (3,285,754) 43,636,450 41,854,962
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8 Staff

(a) Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:

2021 2020

Total Total

funds funds

£ £

Wages and salaries 6,615,195 6,282,996
Social security costs 977,309 632,022
Pension costs 1,425,379 1,618,114
9,017,883 8,533,132

Supply staff costs 57,544 127,226

9,075,427 8,660,358

(b) Staff numbers
The average number of persons (including the senior management team) employed by the
charitable company during the year ended 31 August 2021 was as follows:

2021 2020
Charitable activities ) No. No.
Teachers 113 111
Administration and support 111 121
Management 21 18
245 250

(c) Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the following bands was:

2021 2020

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 2 1
£70,001 - £80,000 4 4
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1 1
£110,001 - £120,000 — 1
£120,001 - £130,000 1 —

All of the above employees participated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. During the year
ended 31 August 2021 pension contributions for these staff members amounted to
£175,836 (2020 - £156,390).
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8

Staff (continued)

(d) Key management personnel

10

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the
Senior Management Team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits
(including employer national insurance and employer pension contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £628,463 (2020 —
£660,432).

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

The Headteacher and other Staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking their role as employees of the Academy and not in
respect of their services as Trustees. Other Trustees did not receive any payments, other
than expenses, from the Academy Trust in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of
Trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mr D A Allman - Chief Executive Officer

. Remuneration £125,001 - £130,000

. Employer’s pension contributions £30,001 - £35,000

Mr D J Kennedy — former Chief Executive Officer

. Remuneration £0 (2020 — £55,001 - £60,000)

. Employer’s pension contributions £0 (2020 — £0 - £5,000)

Mrs R E Semark — Head teacher

. Remuneration £85,001 - £30,000 (2020 - £80,001 - £85,000)

. Employer’s pension contributions £20,001 - £25,000 (2020 - £20,001 - £25,000)
Ms J E M Carson — Head teacher

. Remuneration £75,001 - £80,000 (2020 — £75,001 - £80,000)

. Employer’s pension contributions £15,001 - £20,000 (2020 — £15,001 - £20,000)

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no travel and subsistence expenses were
reimbursed to the trustees (2020 — £170 to one trustees).

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 22.

Trustees’ and Officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased
insurance to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or
omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust business. From March 2015, the Academy
Trust was part of the Academies Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA). The cost of this
insurance is included within the total insurance cost and cannot be separately identified.
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12

13

14

Tangible fixed assets

Freehold Leasehold Furniture

land and land and and

buildings buildings  equipment Total

£ £ £ £

Costl/valuation
At 1 September 2020 39,640,696 9,569,825 429,656 49,640,177
At 31 August 2021 39,640,696 9,569,825 429,656 49,640,177
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 5,214,085 503,546 286,096 6,003,727
Charge in year 646,122 127,488 21,873 795,483
At 31 August 2021 5,860,207 631,034 307,969 6,799,210
Net book value
At 31 August 2021 33,780,489 8,938,791 121,687 42,840,967
At 31 August 2020 34,426,611 9,066,279 143,560 43,646,450

Investments

The Academy Trust holds one ordinary £25 share in Herts For Learning Limited, a United
Kingdom private limited company registered in England and Wales under company
number 08419581. The company is owned by Hertfordshire Schools and Hertfordshire
County Council with any one school only permitted to hold one share as a minority
interest. Being a shareholder gives the Academy Trust access to discounts on the
purchase of training courses and a range of other educational support services.

The Trustees have estimated that the market value of the Academy Trust's investment at
the balance sheet date is its original cost.

Stock
2021 2020
£ £
Stock of miscellaneous goods 26,677 17,846
Debtors
2021 2020
£ £
Trade debtors 27,118 43,381
VAT recoverable 113,146 63,648
Other debtors 79,640 9,984
Prepayments and accrued income 134,386 243,076
354,290

360,089
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020

£ £

Trade creditors 118,755 123,894
Taxation and social security 173,202 161,090
Other creditors 348,340 280,478
Accruals and deferred income (see below) 200,539 94,676

840,836 660,138

Deferred income (included above)

Deferred income at 1 September 2020 19,459 119,110
Released during the year (19,459) (119,110)
Resources deferred in the year 52,009 19,459
Deferred income at 31 August 2021 52,009 19,459

At the balance sheet date, the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for
school trips and rates and insurance income.
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16 Funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at

September losses and 31 August

2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021

£ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds :

. General Annual Grant (GAG) 157,808 9,616,463  (9,410,520) (3,540) 360,211
. Pupil Premium — 328,734 (328,734) — —_
. UIFSM — 91,108 (91,108) — —_
. Catch-up premium — 80,714 (80,714) — —_
. Other COVID-19 funding — 31,980 (31,980) — —_
. Other grants — 782,981 (782,981) — —_
. Capital grants 35,438 43,863 (50,343) —_ 28,958
. Pension reserve (3,479,000) — (364,000) (1,323,000) (5,166,000)

(3,285,754) 10,975,843 (11,140,380) (1,326,540) (4,776,831)

Restricted fixed assets funds

. Transfer on conversion 37,474,726 — — — 37,474,726

. DfE/ESFA capital grants 5,698,555 — (795,483) — 4,903,072
. Capital expenditure from

GAG 444 372 —_ — — 444,372

. Other donations 18,797 — — —_ 18,797

43,636,450 —_ (795,483) — 42,840,967

Total restricted funds 40,350,696 10,975,843 (11,935,863) (1,326,540) 38,158,413

Unrestricted funds

. General funds 1,504,266 187,741 — 3,540 1,695,547
Total unrestricted funds 1,504,266 187,741 — 3,540 1,695,547
Total funds 41,854,962 11,163,584 (11,935,863) (1,323,000) 39,759,683

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities
of the Academy Trust that has been provided to the Academy Trust via the Education and
Skills Funding Agency by the Department for Education. The General Annual Grant Fund
has been set up because the GAG must be used for the normal running costs of the
Academy Trust. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy
Trust was not subject to a limit on the GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.

The pension reserve has been created to separately identify the pension deficit inherited
from the local authority upon conversion to Academy status, and through which all the
Local Government Pension Scheme movements are recognised.
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16 Funds (continued)
The Capital Grants Fund has been created to recognise the restricted grant funding
received from all sources towards capital expenditure projects undertaken throughout the
Academy Trust. Transfers are made to the Capital Grants Fixed Asset Fund for
expenditure incurred that is in respect of tangible fixed assets.

Transfers from unrestricted funds to restricted funds represent the funding of the current
year deficit on educational activities and the funding of capital expenditure from the
Academy Trust’'s General Fund.

Total funds analysis by Academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

Total Total
2021 2020
£ £

The John Warner School 735,327 424,966
The Cranbourne Primary School 214,760 120,500
Roselands Primary School 61,348 78,767
Trust : 1,073,279 1,073,279
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2,084,714 1,697,512
Restricted fixed asset fund 42,840,967 43,636,450
Pension reserve (5,166,000) (3,479,000)
Total 39,759,681 41,854,962

Total cost analysis by Academy
Expenditure incurred by each school during the year (excluding depreciation, losses on
asset sales and actuarial pension adjustments) was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support staff support Educational (excluding Total Total
costs staff costs supplies depreciation) 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
The John Warner
School . 5,390,185 489,841 309,794 906,738 7,096,558 6,948,261
The Cranbourne
Primary School 1,357,262 101,328 57,762 305,879 1,822,231 1,768,029
Roselands Primary
School 1,006,651 106,127 62,459 254,489 1,429,726 1,368,859
Central services 139,965 181,068 — 106,834 427,867 329,090
Academy Trust 7,894,063 878,364 430,015 1,573,940 10,776,382 10,414,239
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16 Funds (continued)

Central services

Central services include leadership, commercial direction, high-level finance, HR, and
operational support. The central services function is performed by the John Warner School
and is funded by a contribution from the other Academy Schools equivalent to 4.01% of
agreed elements of their central government funding income (2020 — 2.94%). The actual
contributions charged during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £'000
The Cranbourne Primary School 62,099 41,536
Roselands Primary School 46,373 32,314
108,472 73,850
Comparative information
Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
. General Annual Grant (GAG) 112,402 9,081,719  (9,055,902) 19,588 157,808
. Pupil Premium — 352,294 (352,294) — —_
. Capital grants 391,769 (251,134) (105,197) —_ 35,438
. Other DfE/ ESFA grants — 900,852 (900,852) — —
. Pension reserve (2,518,000) — (317,000) (644,000) (3,479,000)

(2,013,829) 10,083,731 (10,731,244) (624,412) (3,285,754)

Restricted fixed assets funds

. Transfer on conversion 37,474,726 — — — 37,474,726
. DfE/ESFA capital grants 6,503,701 —_ (805,146) — 5,698,555
. Capital expenditure from

GAG 444,372 — —_ — 444,372
. Other donations 8,797 10,000 — —_ 18,797
' 44,431,596 10,000 (805,146) — 43,636,450
Total restricted funds 42,417,767 10,093,731 (11,536,390) (624,412) 40,350,696
Unrestricted funds
. General funds 1,089,529 434,325 — (19,588) 1,504,266
Total unrestricted funds 1,089,529 434,325 —_ (19,5688) 1,504,266

Total funds 43,507,296 10,528,056 (11,536,390) (644,000) 41,854,962
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17 Analysis of net assets between funds

18

19

20

Restricted
Restricted fixed
Unrestricted general asset Total
funds funds fund 2021
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented by:
Fixed assets 25 — 42,840,967 42,840,992
Current assets 1,695,522 1,330,005 — 2,925,527
Current liabilities — (840,836) — (840,836)
Pension scheme liability — (5,166,000) —  (5,166,000)
Total net assets 1,695,547 (4,776,831) 42,840,967 39,759,683
Restricted
Restricted fixed
Unrestricted general asset Total
funds funds fund 2020
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are
represented by:
Fixed assets — 25 43,636,450 43,636,475
Current assets 1,504,266 853,359 — 2,357,625
Current liabilities — (660,138) — (660,138)
Pension scheme liability —  (3,479,000) —  (3,479,000)
Total net assets 1,504,266  (3,285,754) 43,636,450 41,854,962

Capital commitments

At 31 August 2021, the Academy Trust had capital commitments of £nil (2020 — £nil).

Commitments under operating leases
At 31 August 2021, the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases was as follows:

2021 2020

£

Amounts due within one year 25,351 18,203
Amounts due between two and five years inclusive 243,145 8,325
268,496 26,528

Members’ liability

Each member of the Academy Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company
in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she
ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the
debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member
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21 Pension and similar obligations
The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’
Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by
Hertford County Council. Both are muiti-employer defined benefit schemes.

The LGPS obligation includes employees transferred as part of the conversion of
Roseland and Cranbourne Primary Schools from maintained school status and new
employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in
respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at
both the predecessor schools and the Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of
the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £168,253 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021
(2020 - £159,071) and are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply
to teachers in schools, colleges and other educational establishments. Membership is
automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers and lecturers are
able to opt out of the TPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis —
these contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer
under arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits
are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension
plan. The Academy Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and
has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan.
The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the plan and the
implications for the Academy Trust in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public
Service Pension Act 2013. Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate
of return assuming funds are invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of
return. ’
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21

Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (continued)

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic
for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following
enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and.employer makes
contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the
Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by
Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial
review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of
the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are
dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5§ March
2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

¢ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08%
administration levy);

+ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets
(estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the
valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000
million; and

¢ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return.
The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. assumed real rate of return is
2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings
growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including
earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,301,840 (2020 -
£1,083,996).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pension
Scheme website.
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21

Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (continued)

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension
scheme. The Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it
were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the
information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was
£349,000 (2020 - £334,000), of which employer’'s contributions totalled £275,000 (2020 -
£266,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £74,000 (2020 - £68,000). The agreed
contribution rates for future years are 25.3% for employers and up to 12.5% for
employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a
guarantee that, in the event of Academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension
Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came
into force on 18 July 2013.

At 31 At 31

August August

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 2021 2020
Rate of increase in salaries ' 3.3% 2.6%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.9% 2.2%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7% 1.7%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.9% 2.2%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 At 31
August August
2021 2020
Retiring today
Males 221 21.9
Females 23.2 22.8
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.5 241
Females 26.2 25.5
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21 Pension and similar obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The below analysis shows the increase to the defined benefit obligation for the following

changes in assumption:

At 31 At 31
August August
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Discount rate -0.5% 1,000 1,115
Salary increase rate +0.5% 190 199
Pension increase rate +0.5% 795 890
The Academy Trust's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme were:
Fair value  Fair value
at 31 at 31
August August
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Equities 3,122 2,626
Bonds 1,708 1,734
Property 648 446
Cash 412 149
Total market value of assets 5,890 4,955
Present value of scheme liabilities
. Funded (11,056) (8,434)
Share of scheme deficit (5,166) (3,479)
The actual return on scheme assets was 16.6%.
2021 2020 -
Amounts recognised in statement of financial activities £000 £'000
Current service cost 578 523
Past service cost — 10
Pension finance costs (see below) 148 50
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 639 583
Analysis of pension finance costs
Expected return on pension scheme assets 87 92
Interest on pension liabilities (148) (142)
Pension finance costs (61) (50)
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22

Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were 2021 2020
as follows: £000 £000
At 1 September 2020 (8,434) (7,290)
Past service cost - (10)
Current service cost (578) (523)
Interest cost (148) (142)
Employee contributions (74) (68)
Actuarial gain (1,906) (475)
Benefits paid 84 74
At 31 August 2021 (11,056) (8,434)
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust’s share of scheme 2021 2020
assets: £000 £000
At 1 September 2020 4,955 4,772
Actuarial gain 583 (169)
Expected return on assets 87 92
Employer contributions 275 266
Employee contributions 74 68
Benefits paid (84) (74)
At 31 August 2021 5,890 4,955

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composition of the Board
of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions
may take place with organisations in which a Trustee may have an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations would, of course, be conducted at arm’s length
and in accordance with the Academy Trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement

procedures.

The following related party transactions took place in the financial year:

i)i Mrs J E M Carson, Trustee, had a child employed by the Academy Trust during the
financial year, as a teacher. The original appointment to this role was made in open
competition and the Trustee was not involved in the decision making process regarding

appointment and has no role in setting pay scales for their child.

i) Mrs J Allman, spouse of Mr D A Allman, a member of the senior management team, is
employed by the Academy Trust as a teacher. Mrs Aliman is paid within the normal
pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship

with the senior management team.
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23 Agency arrangements
The Academy Trust administers the disbursement of the new discretionary support for
learners, 16-19 Bursary Funds, on behalf of the ESFA. In the year, it received £10,232
(2020 - £13,109) of funding and disbursed £3,248 (2020 - £4,851), with the unspent
balance at 31 August 2021 included in other creditors.
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